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Offices of Wilson Bank Trust Lebanon TN

OFFICERS
Loan Officer Hartsville

AVP/Office Manager Mt Juliet

AVP/Office Manager Church Street

Sr Vice President Main Office-Loan Dept

Registered Operations Manager Main Office-Investment Dept

Loan Officer Hermitage

Executive Vice President Main Office

Marketing Officer Main Office-Marketing

Loan Officer Smyrna

Assistant Office Manager Highway 70

Assistant Office Manager Mt Juliet

Sr Vice President/Operations Main Office-Executive Offices

SVP/Eastern Regional President Gordonsville

Sr Mortgage Officer Hendersonville

Assistant Office Manager Smyrna

Personal Banker Officer Hermitage

Assistant Office Manager Baddour Parkway

VP/ Loan Business Development Officer Gordonsville

AVP/Office Manager Gladeville

VP/Loan Officer Carthage

Sr Vice President/CFO Main Office-Executive Offices

Mortgage Loan Officer Mortgage Center

Personal Banker Officer Main Office-New Accounts

AVP/Office Manager Smyrna

President Main Office-Executive Offices

VP/Office Manager Baddour Parkway

Loan Review Officer Main Office-Loan Review

AVP/Financial Advisor/Office Manager Carthage

AVP/Office Manager Providence

AVP/Loan Documentation Manager Main Office-Loan Documentation

Assistant Office Manager Castle Heights

AVP/South Region Commercial Lender Memorial Blvd

Loan Officer Mt Juliet

AVP/Accounting Officer Main Office-Accounting

Assistant Office Manager Gladeville

AVP/Loan Review Officer Main Office-Loan Review

Assistant Manager Electronic Banking Dept Main Office-EFT Dept

AVP/Sr Compliance Officer Main OfficeCompliance

VP/Internal Audit/BSA Officer Main Office-Internal Audit

SVP/Certified Financial Planner/Branch Manager Main Office-Investment Dept

AVP/Assistant Office Manager Gallatin

Document Imaging Officer Main Office-Imaging

AVP/Mortgage Loan Officer Mt Juliet

Overdraft Collections Officer Main Office-Deposit Operations

Assistant Office Manager Watertown

Vice President Main Office-Executive Offices

Loan Officer Watertown

AVP/Office Manager Broad Street

VP/Office Manager Gordonsville

Assistant Office Manager Church Street

Assistant Office Manager Hermitage

Vice President/Loan Officer Smithville

Business Development Officer Smithville

VP/Mortgage Manager Mortgage Center

AVP/Collections Supervisor Main Office-Collection Dept

Audit Officer Main Office-Internal Audit

Certified Financial Planner Main Office-Investment Dept

Assistant Office Manager Providence

Office Manager Hendersonville

Administrative Asst Officer Main Office-Executive Offices

Loan Officer Main Office-Loan Dept

Loan Development Manager Main Office

Financial Advisor CLU Mt Juliet-Investment Dept

Executive VP/Sr Credit Officer Main Office-Loan Dept

Assistant Office Manager Donelson

AVP/Office Manager TN Blvd

CSR Officer Main Office-Teller Dept

12

WBf Annual Report2Ol2



CONSOLIDATED

BALANCE SHEETS

Total assets end of
year

Loans net

Securities

Deposits

Stockholders equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

OF EARNINGS

Interest income

Interest expense

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS UNAUDITED

in Thousands Except Per Share Information

Net earnings l2148 10050 9027 11567 ll398

RATIOS

Return on average stockholders equity

Return on average assets

Capital to assets

Dividends declared
per

share as percentage
of basic

earnings per share

6243
______________ ______________

7.49 6.77 6.44

0.75 0.66 0.60

10.10 9.98 9.70

43.48

As Of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

1680820 1577370 1488106 1464008 1406786

1142111 1098733 1073.091 1098614 1.077047

332786 325195 290428 261817 205260

1493922 1406042 1331282 1310706 1248500

169698 157348 144333 139557 129118

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

72361 72.350 76180 81093 87366

14107 17890 24052 30795 40392

Net interest income 58254 54460 52128 50298 46974

Provision for loan losses 9528 8678 14834 7828 6718

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 48726 45782 37294 42470 40256

Non-interest income 16035 14476 14266 13981 13122

Non-interest expense 45098 43663 36705 37704 34939

Earnings before income taxes 19663 16595 14855 18747 18439

Income taxes 7515 6545 5828 7180 7.04

Cash dividends declared

PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

Cash dividends

Book value

4348 4300

1.65

1.65

0.85

22.87

4379 4168

1.38

1.38

0.60

21.54

1.25

1.25

0.60

19.98

1.63

1.63

0.62

19.53

8.60

081

9.53

1.63

1.62

060

18.34

9.26

0.82

9.18

51.52 48.00 38.04 3681
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain forward-looking statements regarding among other things the anticipated financial and

operating results of the Company Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking

statements which speak only as of the date hereof The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any

modifications or revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the

date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events

In coimection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the

Company cautions investors that future financial and operating results may differ materially from those projected in

forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the Company The words expect intend should may
could believe suspect anticipate seek plan estimate and similar expressions are intended to identify

such forward-looking statements but other statements not based on historical fact may also be considered forward-

looking Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties including but not

limited to those described in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012

and also include without limitation deterioration in the financial condition of borrowers resulting in significant

increases in loan losses and provisions for these losses ii greater than anticipated deterioration in the real estate

market conditions in the Companys market areas iii increased competition with other financial institutions iv the

deterioration of the economy in the Companys market area continuation of the extremely low short-term interest

rate environment or rapid fluctuations in short-term interest rates vi significant downturns in the business of one or

more large customers vii the inability of the Company to comply with regulatory capital requirements including

those resulting from proposed changes to capital calculation methodologies and required capital maintenance levels

viii changes in state or Federal regulations policies or legislation applicable to banks and other financial service

providers including regulatory or legislative developments arising out of current unsettled conditions in the

economy including implementation of the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act ix
changes in capital levels and loan underwriting credit review or loss reserve policies associated with economic

conditions examination conclusions or regulatory developments inadequate allowance for loan losses xi the

effectiveness of the Companys activities in improving resolving or liquidating lower quality assets xii results of

regulatory examinations and xiii loss of key personnel These risks and uncertainties may cause the actual results or

performance of the Company to be materially different from any future results or performance expressed or implied

by such forward-looking statements The Companys future operating results depend on number of factors which

were derived utilizing numerous assumptions that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projectd

in forward-looking statements

General

The Company is registered bank holding company that owns 100% of the common stock of Wilson Bank and Trnst

Wilson Bank state bank headquartered in Lebanon Tennessee The Company was formed in 1992

Wilson Bank is community bank headquartered in Lebanon Tennessee serving Wilson County DeKalb County

Smith County Trousdale County Rutherford County the eastern part of Davidson County and Sumner County

Tennessee as its primary market areas Generally this market is the eastern portion of the Nashville-Davidson

Murfreesboro-Franklin Tennessee metropolitan statistical area Wilson Bank has twenty-five locations in Wilson

Davidson DeKalb Smith Sumner Rutherford and Trousdale Counties Management believes that these counties

offer an environment for continued growth and the Companys target market is local consumers professionals and

small businesses Wilson Bank offers wide range of banking services including checking savings and money

market deposit accounts certificates of deposit and loans for consumer commercial and real estate purposes The

Company also offers an investment center which offers full line of investment services to its customers

The following discussion and analysis is designed to assist readers in their analysis of the Companys consolidated

financial statements and should be read in conjunction with such consolidated financial statements

Critical Accounting Estimates

The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles and with general practices within the banking industry In connection with the

application of those principles we have made judgments and estimates which in the case of the determination of our

allowance for loan losses and the assessment of impairment of the intangibles resulting from our mergers with
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Dekalb Community Bank and Community Bank of Smith County in 2005 have been critical to the determination of

our financial position and results of operations

Allowance for Loan Losses allowance Our management assesses the adequacy of the allowance prior to the

end of each calendar quarter This assessment includes procedures to estimate the allowance and test the adequacy

and appropriateness of the resulting balance The level of the allowance is based upon managements evaluation of

the loan portfolio past loan loss experience current asset quality trends known and inherent risks in the portfolio

adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay including the timing of future payment the

estimated value of any underlying collateral composition of the loan portfolio economic conditions industry and

peer bank loan quality indications and other pertinent factors including regulatory recommendations This evaluation

is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash flows

expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change Loan losses are charged off

when management believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely loan may be partially charged-off

after confirming event has occurred which serves to validate that full repayment pursuant to the terms of the loan

is unlikely Allocation of the allowance may be made for specific loans but the entire allowance is available for any

loan that in managements judgment is deemed to be uncollectible

loan is impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that we will be unable to collect all

amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Collection of all amounts due according to the

contractual terms means that both the interest and principal payments of loan will be collected as scheduled in the

loan agreement

An impairment allowance is recognized if the fair value of the loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan

recorded investment in the loan is the principal balance plus any accrued interest net of deferred loan fees or costs

and unamortized premium or discount The impairment is recognized through the allowance Loans that are impaired

are recorded at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate or if the

loan is collateral dependent impairment measurement is based on the fair value of the collateral less estimated

disposal costs If the measure of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan the Company

recognizes an impairment by creating valuation allowance with corresponding charge to the provision for loan

losses or by adjusting an existing valuation allowance for the impaired loan with corresponding charge or credit to

the provision for loan losses Management believes it follows appropriate accounting and regulatory guidance in

determining impairment and accrual status of impaired loans

The level of allowance maintained is believed by management to be adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in

the portfolio at the balance sheet date The allowance is increased by provisions charged to expense and decreased by

charge-offs net of recoveries of amounts previously charged-off

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance we also consider the results of our ongoing loan review process We

undertake this process both to ascertain whether there are loans in the portfolio whose credit quality has weakened

over time and to assist in our overall evaluation of the risk characteristics of the entire loan portfolio Our loan review

process includes the judgment of management the input from our independent loan reviewers and reviews that may

have been conducted by bank regulatory agencies as part of their usual examination process
We incorporate loan

review results in the determination of whether or not it is probable that we will be able to collect all amounts due

according to the contractual terms of loan

As part of managements quarterly assessment of the allowance management divides the loan portfolio into twelve

segments based on bank call reporting requirements Each segment is then analyzed such that an allocation of the

allowance is estimated for each loan segment

The allowance allocation begins with process of estimating the probable losses in each of the twelve loan segments

The estimates for these loans are based on our historical loss data for that category over the last twelve quarters

The estimated loan loss allocation for all twelve loan portfolio segments is then adjusted for several environmental

factors The allocation for environmental factors is particularly subjective and does not lend itself to exact

mathematical calculation This amount represents estimated probable inherent credit losses which exist but have not

yet been identified as of the balance sheet date and are based upon quarterly trend assessments in delinquent and

nonaccrual loans unanticipated charge-offs credit concentration changes prevailing economic conditions changes

in lending personnel experience changes in lending policies or procedures and other influencing factors These
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

environmental factors are considered for each of the twelve loan segments and the allowance allocation as

determined by the processes noted above for each component is increased or decreased based on the incremental

assessment of these various environmental factors

We then test the resulting allowance by comparing the balance in the allowance to industry and peer information Our

management then evaluates the result of the procedures performed including the result of our testing and concludes

on the appropriateness of the balance of the allowance in its entirety The board of directors reviews and approves the

assessment prior to the filing of quarterly and annual financial information

Impairment of Intangible Assets Long-lived assets including purchased intangible assets subject to amortization

are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an

asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the

carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows an impairment charge is recognized by the

amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset Assets to be disposed of would

be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs

to sell and are no longer depreciated

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are evaluated for impairment annually and are

evaluated for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired That

annual assessment date is December An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount

exceeds the assets fair value The Company first has the option to perform qualitative assessment of goodwill to

determine if impairment has occurred Based upon the qualitative assessment if the fair value of goodwill exceeds

the carrying value the evaluation of goodwill is complete If the qualitative assessment indicates that impairment is

present the goodwill impairment analysis continues with two-step test The first step used to identif potential

impairment involves comparing each reporting units estimated fair value to its carrying value including goodwill If

the estimated fair value of reporting unit exceeds its carrying value goodwill is considered not to be impaired If

the carrying value exceeds estimated fair value there is an indication of potential impairment and the second step is

performed to measure the amount of impairment

If required the second step involves calculating an implied fair value of goodwill for each reporting unit for which

the first step indicated potential impairment The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in manner similar to

the amount of goodwill calculated in business combination by measuring the excess of the estimated fair value of

the reporting unit as determined in the first step over the aggregate estimated fair values of the individual assets

liabilities and identifiable intangibles as if the reporting unit was being acquired in business combination If the

implied fair value of goodwill exceeds the carrying value of goodwill assigned to the reporting unit there is no

impairment If the carrying value of goodwill assigned to reporting unit exceeds the implied fair value of the

goodwill an impairment charge is recorded for the excess An impairment loss cannot exceed the carrying value of

goodwill assigned to reporting unit and the loss establishes new basis in the goodwill

Other-than-temporary Impairment decline in the fair value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security

below cost that is deemed to be other-than-temporary results in reduction in the carrying amount of the security To

determine whether impairment is other-than-temporary management considers whether the entity expects to recover

the entire amortized cost basis of the security by reviewing the present value of the future cash flows associated with

the security The shortfall of the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected in relation to the amortized

cost basis is referred to as credit loss and is deemed to be other-than temporary impairment If credit loss is

identified the credit loss is recognized as charge to earnings and new cost basis for the security is established If

management concludes that no credit loss exists and it is not more-likely-than-not that it will be required to sell the

security before maturity then the security is not other-than-temporarily impaired and the shortfall is recorded as

component of equity

Results of Operations

Net earnings for the year ended December 31 2012 were $12148000 an increase of 2098000 or 20.9% compared

to net earnings of $10050000 for 2011 Our 2011 net earnings were 11.3% or $1023000 above our net earnings of

$9027000 for 2010 Basic earnings per share were $1.65 in 2012 compared with $1.38 in 2011 and $1.25 in 2010

Diluted earnings per share were $1.65 in 2012 compared to $1.38 in 2011 and $1.25 in 2010 Net interest margin for

the year ended December 31 2012 was 3.84% compared to 3.85% and 3.69% for the years ended December 31
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2011 and December 31 2010 respectively Net interest spread for the year ended December 31 2012 was 3.71%

compared to 3.67% and 3.46% for the years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 The increase in net

interest spread is attributable to the continuing impact of lower interest rate policies initiated by the Federal Reserve

Board and the Banks ability to lower deposit costs during 2012

Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the amount by which interest earned on various earning assets exceeds interest paid on

deposits and other interest-bearing liabilities and is the most significant component of the Companys earnings Total

interest income in 2012 was $72361000 compared with $72350000 in 2011 and $76180000 in 2010 in each case

excluding tax exempt adjustments relating to tax exempt securities The increase in total interest income in 2012 was

primarily attributable to the Banks ability to lower interest expense in the current low interest rate environment at

time when the Companys lower-yielding investment securities continued to grow at rate faster than loans The

ratio of average earning assets to total average assets was 93.8% 94.0% and 94.8% for each of the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Average earning assets increased $101 million from December 31

2011 to December 31 2012 The average rate earned on earning assets for 2012 was 4.77% compared with 5.10% in

2011 and 5.38% in 2010 The decrease in yields is direct reflection of the rate cuts implemented by the Federal

Reserve Open Market Committee beginning in August 2007 that have continued throughout 2012 In addition yields

on securities have declined sharply due to the current rate environment However the decreases in earning asset

yields were offset by decrease in cost of deposits resulting in an overall increase in net interest income

Interest earned on earning assets does not include any interest income which would have been recognized on non-

accrual loans if such loans were performing The amount of interest not recognized on non-accrual loans totaled

$697000 in 2012 $875000 in 2011 and $1836000 in 2010 Total interest expense for 2012 was $14107000

decrease of $3783000 or 21.1% compared to total interest expense of $17890000 in 2011 The decrease in 2012

was primarily due to decrease in the rates paid on deposits particularly time deposits reflecting the low interest rate

environment and continued shift in the mix of deposits from certificates of deposits to transaction and money

market accounts Interest expense decreased from $24052000 in 2010 to $17890000 in 2011 decrease of

$6162000 or 25.6% reflecting similar shifts in deposit mix and reductions in rates paid

Net interest income for 2012 totaled $58254000 as compared to $54460000 and $52128000 in 2011 and 2010

respectively The net interest spread defined as the effective yield on earning assets less the effective cost of

deposits and borrowed funds calculated on fully taxable equivalent basis increased to 3.71% in 2012 from 3.67%

in 2011 The net interest spread was 3.46% in 2010 Net interest margin is the net interest income expressed as

percentage of average earning assets Net interest margin for 2012 and 2011 was 3.84% and 3.85% up from 3.69% in

2010 The change in net interest margin result from the Banks ability to lower deposit costs offset by small

decrease in yields due to the lower rate environment and rate pressure from regional banks The Company believes

that the Federal Reserve Board will maintain the current discount rate throughout most of 2013 Changes in interest

rates paid on products such as interest checking savings and money market accounts will generally increase or

decrease in manner that is consistent with changes in the short-term environment The Companys liabilities are

positioned to re-price faster than its assets such that short-term declining rate environment should have positive

impact on the Companys earnings as its interest expense decreases faster than interest income Management

regularly monitors the deposit rates of the Companys competitors and these rates continue to put pressure on the

Companys deposit pricing This pressure could negatively impact the Companys net interest margin and earnings if

future short-term rates begin to rise Similarly rising rate environment could have short-term negative impact on

margins as many of the Companys loans have rate floors thus deposits would likely re-price faster than loans

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses represents charge to earnings necessary to establish an allowance for loan losses that

in managements evaluation should be adequate to provide coverage for estimated losses on outstanding loans and to

provide for uncertainties in the economy The 2012 provision for loan losses was $9528000 an increase of

$850000 from the provision of $8678000 in 2011 The increase in the provision for the year ended December 31

2012 was primarily related to an increase in the provision relating to commercial real estate and construction loans

Although the Bank has experienced modest loan growth of 4% and an overall stabilization in the loan portfolio

management has decided to continue to fund the allowance for loan losses through general provisions The

provision for loan losses is based on past loan experience and other factors which in managements judgment

deserve current recognition in estimating loan losses Such factors include growth and composition of the loan
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

portfolio review of specific problem loans review of updated appraisals and borrower financial information the

recommendations of the Companys regulators and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers

ability to repay

The Companys charge-off policy for impaired loans is similar to its charge-off policy for all loans in that loans are

charged-off in the month when they are considered uncollectible Net charge-offs increased to $8556000 in 2012

from $6330000 in 2011 Net charge-offs in 2010 totaled $9304000 The increase in net charge-offs reflected the

Companys increase in losses on construction and commercial real estate loans and reflected the Bank aggressively

partially charging down impaired loans that were previously specifically allowed for During 2010 the Company

charged off or partially charged off several large commercial and construction real estate loans resulting in an overall

higher level of charge-offs for 2010 compared to 2011 The ratio of net charge-offs to average total outstanding

loans was 0.75% in 2012 0.57% in 2011 and 0.85% in 2010

The net charge-offs and provision for loan losses resulted in an increase of the allowance for loan losses net of

charge-offs and recoveries to $25497000 at December 31 2012 from $24525000 at December 31 2011 and

$22177000 at December 31 2010 The allowance increased 3.95% at December 31 2012 over December 31 2011

equal to the 3.95% increase in total loans over the same period The allowance for loan losses was 2.18% of total

loans outstanding at December 31 2012 compared to 2.18% at December 31 2011 and 2.02% at December 31 2010

As percentage of nonperforming loans at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the allowance for loan losses

represented 120% 70% and 90% respectively

The level of the allowance and the amount of the provision involve evaluation of uncertainties and matters of

judgment The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses which management believes is adequate to absorb

losses inherent in the loan portfolio formal review is prepared monthly by the Chief Financial Officer and

provided to the Board of Directors to assess the risk in the portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance

for loan losses The review includes analysis of historical performance the level of non-performing and adversely

rated loans specific analysis of certain problem loans loan activity since the previous assessment reports prepared

by the Loan Review Officer consideration of current economic conditions and other pertinent information The level

of the allowance to net loans outstanding will vary depending on the overall results of this quarterly assessment See

the discussion under Critical Accounting Estimates for more information Management believes the allowance for

loan losses at December 31 2012 to be adequate but if economic conditions deteriorate beyond managements

current expectations and additional charge-offs are incurred the allowance for loan losses may require an increase

through additional provision for loan losses which would negatively impact earnings

Non-Interest Income

The components of the Companys non-interest income include service charges on deposit accounts other fees and

commissions fees and gains on sales of loans gains on sales of securities and other income Total non-interest

income for 2012 was $16035000 compared with $14476000 in 2011 and $14266000 in 2010 The 10.8%

increase over 2011 was primarily due to an increase in other fees and commissions and fees and gains on sales of

loans offset in part by decrease in service charges on deposits Other fees and commissions increased $744000 in

2012 when compared to 2011 Other fees and commissions include income on brokerage accounts debit card

interchange fee income and various other fees Fees and gains on sale of loans increased $1533000 in 2012 when

compared to 2011 The increase in gain on sale of loans during 2012 related primarily to the increase in mortgage

originations and refinancing which occurred during the year ended December 31 2012 Although our transaction

account deposits increased in each of the last three fiscal years service charges on deposit accounts totaled

$4568000 $5356000 and $5354000 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

reflecting our customers slowing their spending due to the weakened economy and the impact beginning in 2011 of

changes to federal regulations related to service charges on ATM and point of sale debit card transactions

The Companys non-interest income is composed of several components some of which vary significantly between

periods Service charges on deposit accounts and other non-interest income generally reflect the Companys growth

while fees for origination of mortgage loans and brokerage fees and commissions will often reflect stock and home

mortgage market conditions and fluctuate more widely from period to period
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Non-Interest Expenses

Non-interest expenses consist primarily of employee costs FDIC premiums occupancy expenses furniture and

equipment expenses advertising and marketing expenses data processing expenses directors fees expenses

associated with the maintenance valuation and disposition of other real estate and other operating expenses Total

non-interest expenses for 2012 increased 3.3% to $45098000 from $43663000 in 2011 The 2011 non-interest

expense was up 19.0% over non-interest expenses in 2010 which totaled $36705000 The increase in non-interest

expenses in 2012 is primarily attributable to an increase in employee salaries and benefits associated with the number

of employees necessary to support the Companys operations and the addition of new office in 2012

Other operating expenses increased to $10092000 in 2012 from $9868000 in 2011 and $8894000 in 2010 Other

operating expenses included advertising and marketing expenses and supplies and general operating expenses which

increased as result of continued growth of the Company The increase in other operating expenses
for the period

ended December 31 2012 was primarily due to an increase in advertising and public relations relating to the Banks

25th anniversary celebration and an increase in donations Also contributing to the increase in other operating

expenses was an increase in debit card interchange fee expense relating to the increase in debit card interchange fee

income

Income Taxes

The Companys income tax expense was $7515000 for 2012 an increase of $970000 from $6545000 for 2011

which was up by $717000 from the 2010 total of $5828000 The percentage of income tax expense to earnings

before taxes was 38.2% in 2012 39.4% in 2011 and 39.2% in 2010

Our effective tax rate for fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 was 43.9% 46.2% and 55.9% respectively Our tax rate

is affected by discrete items that may occur in any given year but are not consistent from year to year

Our income tax expense deferred tax assets and liabilities and reserves for unrecognized tax benefits reflect

managements best assessment of estimated future taxes to be paid We are subject to income taxes in both the U.S

and the state of Tennessee Significant judgments and estimates are required in determining the consolidated income

tax expense

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of

revenue and expense In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets we consider all available positive

and negative evidence including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities projected future taxable income tax

planning strategies and recent financial operations In projecting future taxable income we begin with historical

results adjusted for changes in accounting policies and incorporate assumptions including the amount of future state

and federal pretax operating income the reversal of temporary differences and the implementation of feasible and

prudent tax planning strategies These assumptions require significant judgment about the forecasts of future taxable

income and are consistent with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying businesses In

evaluating the objective evidence that historical results provide we consider three years of cumulative operating

income

Changes in current tax laws and rates could also affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future

Management is not aware of any such changes that would have material effect on the Companys results of

operations cash flows or financial position

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes provides that tax benefit from an

uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon

examination including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes based on the technical merits ASC

Topic 740 also provides guidance on measurement derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in

interim periods disclosure and transition

We recognize tax liabilities in accordance with ASC Topic 740 and we adjust these liabilities when our judgment

changes as result of the evaluation of new information not previously available Due to the complexity of some of

these uncertainties the ultimate resolution may result in payment that is materially different from our current

estimate of the tax liabilities These differences will be reflected as increases or decreases to income tax expense in

the period in which they are determined
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Earninis Per Share

The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding

during the period The computation of diluted earnings per share for the Company begins with the basic earnings per

share plus the effect of common shares contingently issuable from stock options

The following is summary of components comprising basic and diluted earnings per share EPS for the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Dollars in Thousands except per share amounts

Basic EPS Computation

Numerator Earnings available to common stockholders 12148 10050 9027

Denominator Weighted average number of common shares 7360485 7280907 7198711

outstanding

Basic earnings per common share 1.65 1.38 1.25

Diluted EPS Computation

12.148 10.050 9.027

Numerator Earnings available to common stockholders

Denominator Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding 7360485 7280907 7198711

Diluted effect of stock options 5163 7.215 8253

7.365.648 7.288.122 7.206.964

Diluted earnings per common share 1.65 1.38 1.25

Financial Condition

Balance Sheet Summary
The Companys total assets increased $103450000 or 6.6% to $1680820000 at December 31 2012 after

increasing 6.0% in 2011 to $1577370000 at December 31 2011 Loans net of allowance for loan losses totaled

$1142111000 at December 31 2012 3.95% increase compared to December 31 2011 At year end 2012

securities totaled $332786000 an increase of 2.33% from $325195000 at December 31 2011 Investments in

securities and fed funds sold increased during 2012 as result of the growth in deposits outpacing the growth in

loans

Total liabilities increased by $91100000 or 6.4% to $1511122000 at December 31 2012 compared to

$1420022000 at December 31 2011 This increase was composed primarily of the $87880000 increase in total

deposits to $1493922000 6.3% increase Securities sold under repurchase agreements increased to $10584000

from $7419000 at the respective year ends 2012 and 2011

Stockholders equity increased $12350000 or 7.8% in 2012 due to net earnings and the issuance of stock pursuant

to the Companys Dividend Reinvestment Plan offset by dividends paid on the Companys common stock The

increase includes $1707000 increase in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities net of taxes more

detailed discussion of assets liabilities and capital follows

Loans

Loan category amounts and the percentage of loans in each category to total loans are as follows

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

In Thousands AMOUNT PERCENTAGE AMOUNT PERCENTAGE
Commercial financial

and agricultural 35521 3.0% 48080 4.3%

Consumer 41713 3.6 44689 3.9

Real estate mortgage 902930 77.1 866060 77.0

Real estate construction 190356 16.3 166460 14.8

TOTAL 1170520 100.00% 1125289 100.0%
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Loans are the largest component of the Companys assets and are its primary source of income The Companys loan

portfolio net of allowance for loan losses increased 4.0% as of year end 2012 when compared to year end 2011 The

loan portfolio is composed of four primary loan categories commercial financial and agricultural installment real

estate-mortgage and real estate-construction The table above sets forth the loan categories and the percentage of

such loans in the portfolio at December 31 2012 and 2011

As represented in the table primary loan growth was in real estate mortgage loans and construction loans offset by

decrease in commercial financial and agricultural loans and installment loans Real estate mortgage loans increased

4.3% in 2012 and comprised 77.1% of the total loan portfolio at December 31 2012 compared to 77.0% at

December 2011 Management believes the increase in real estate mortgage loans was primarily due to the

continued favorable interest rate environment favorable population growth in the Companys market areas and the

Companys ability to increase its market share of such loans while maintaining its loan underwriting standards

Commercial financial and agricultural loans decreased 26.1% in 2012 and comprised 3.0% of the total loan portfolio

at December 31 2012 compared to 4.3% at December 31 2011 Real estate construction loans increased 14.4% in

2012 and comprised 16.3% of the portfolio at December 31 2012 compared to 14.8% at December 31 2011 The

increase in real estate construction loans during 2012 reflected the overall increase in such loans in the overall

economy and the Companys market

Banking regulators define highly leveraged transactions to include leveraged buy-outs acquisition loans and

recapitalization loans of an existing business Under the regulatory definition at December 31 2012 the Company

had no highly leveraged transactions and there were no foreign loans outstanding during any of the reporting periods

The following tables present the Companys nonaccrual loans and past due loans as of December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011

Loans on Nonaccrual Status In Thousands

2012 2011

Residential 1-4 family 930 2256

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 4445 4995

Construction 9.626 14378

Farmland 1248 2695

Second mortgages 606 606

Equity lines of credit

Commercial 35

Agricultural installment and other

Total 16.855 $24965
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In thousands

30-59

Days

Past Due

60-89

Days

Past Due

Total

Past Due

Total

Current Loans

Residential 1-4 family 5297 1448 1524 8269 333708 341977 594

Multifamily 16140 16140

CummerLial ical estate 1599 710 4470 6779 462978 469757 25

Construction 796 72 9650 10518 179838 190356 24

Farmland 260 43 1248 1551 24768 26319

Second Mortgages 396 677 1080 11397 12477 71

Equity Lines of Credit 186 173 46 405 35855 36260 46

Commercial 204 24 54 282 30263 30545 54

Agricultural

Installment and other 488 143 105 736 45953 46.689

Total 9.226 2.620 17774 29.620 1.140.900 1.170520

Residential 1-4 family 4003 1029 3566 8598 335431 344029 1310

Multifamily 53 53 9738 9791

Commercial real estate 548 1803 8990 11341 411190 422531 3995

Construction 329 14473 14802 151658 166460 95

Farmland 46 2695 2741 32950 35691

Second Mortgages 49 50 640 739 13972 14711 34

Equity Lines of Credit 36 64 100 39207 39307

Commercial 64 44 148 256 38480 38736 113

Agricultural installment and other 327 172 123 622 53.411 54033 123

105

Total S_5.455 3.162 30.635 39.252 1086037 U2
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Non-performing loans which include nonaccrual loans loans 90 days past due and renegotiated loans totaled

$2 1308000 at December 31 2012 decrease from $34818000 at December 31 2011 resulting from $8110000

or 32.5% decrease in nonaccrual loans The decrease in non-performing loans during the twelve months ended

December 31 2012 of $13510000 is due primarily to decrease in non-performing construction real estate

mortgage loans of $3532000 decrease in non-performing commercial real estate loans of $4520000 and

decrease of residential 1-4 family real estate loans of $2042000 The decrease in non-performing loans was

attributed to combination of loans paying current for an extended period of time and the foreclosure of several

collateral dependent non-performing loans Nonaccrual loans are loans on which interest is no longer accrued

because management believes collection of such interest is doubtful due to managements evaluation of the

borrowers financial condition collateral liquidation value economic and business conditions and other factors

affecting the borrowers ability to pay Nonaccrual loans totaled $16855000 at December 31 2012 compared to

$24965000 at December 31 2011 The decrease in nonaccrual loans relates primarily to decrease in construction

real estate loans Management believes that it is probable that it will incur losses on these loans but believes that

these losses should not exceed the amount in the allowance for loan losses already allocated to these loans unless

there is further deterioration of local real estate values

At December 31 2012 the Company had certain impaired loans of $16855000 which were on non accruing interest

status At December 31 2011 the Company had certain impaired loans of $24965000 which were on non accruing

interest status In each case at the date such loans were placed on nonaccrual status the Company reversed all

previously accrued interest income against current year earnings

The following table presents the Companys impaired loans at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

In Thousands

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

December 31 2012

With no related allowance

recorded

Residential 1-4 family 3418 3418 4134 215

Multifamily
103

Commercial real estate 4439 5439 5371 66

Construction 1952 4252 6166 74

Farmland 37

Second mortgages 606 606 667

Equity lines of credit

Commercial

Agricultural installment

and other

10415 13.715 16.478 355

With allowance recorded

Residential 1-4 family 5950 5950 1318 6084 325

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 12504 12504 2319 14580 509

Construction 8963 8963 2014 8171 52

Farmland 2826 2826 1160 3155 57

Second mortgages 156 156 47 155 10

Equity lines of credit 172 172 223

Commercial 216

Agricultural installment

and other

$_ 30571 30.571 6.86 325M 962
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Total

Residential 1-4 family 9368 9368 1318 10218 540

Multifamily 103

Commercial real estate 16943 17943 2319 19951 575

Construction 10915 13215 2014 14337 126

Farmland 2826 2826 1160 3192 57

Second mortgages 762 762 47 822 10

Equity lines of credit 172 172 223

Commercial 216

Agricultural installment

andother

40986 44286 6.861 49.062 1317

In Thousands

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

December 31 2011

With no related allowance

recorded

Residential 1-4 family 6263 6439 4670 271

Multifamily 412 412 414 23

Commercial real estate 6711 6711 4461 268

Construction 8418 8918 7327 186

Farmland 1366
Second mortgages 606 606 606

Equity lines of credit 93

Commercial 176 51

Agricultural installment

and other

22.410 23242 18.988 il4
With allowance recorded

Residential 1-4 family 5310 5310 1053 7361 262

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 16971 16971 3744 15826 673

Construction 8215 8215 2228 12250 137

Farmland 4261 4261 1193 3181 129

Second mortgages 316 316 41 199 10

Equity lines of credit 170 170 15 43

Commercial 849 849 754 928 32

Agricultural installment

andother

36092 36092 9028 39788 1251

Total

Residential 1-4 family 11573 11749 1053 12031 533

Multifamily 412 412 414 23

Commercial real estate 23682 23682 3744 20287 941

Construction 16633 17133 2228 19577 323

Farmland 4261 4261 1193 4547 129

Second mortgages 922 922 41 805 10

Equity lines of credit 170 170 15 136

Commercial 849 1025 754 979 32

Agricultural installment

and other

58.502 59354 9028 58776 1999
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loan is considered impaired in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance FASB ASC 310-10-35-16

when the current net worth and financial capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged if any is viewed as

inadequate and it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and

interest due under the contractual terms of the loan agreement In those cases such loans have well-defined

weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt and if such deficiencies are not corrected there is

probability that the Company will sustain some loss In such cases interest income continues to accrue as long as

the loan does not meet the Companys criteria for nonaccrual status Impaired loans are measured at the present

value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate at the loans observable market

price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent If the measure of the impaired loan is less

than the recorded investment in the loan the Company shall recognize impairment by creating valuation allowance

with corresponding charge to the provision for loan losses or by adjusting an existing valuation allowance for the

impaired loan with corresponding charge or credit to the provision for loan losses

The Company considers all loans subject to the provisions of FASB ASC 10-10-35-16 that are on nonaccrual status

to be impaired Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when doubt as to timely collection of principal or interest

exists or when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more unless such loans are well-secured and in the process

of collection Delays or shortfalls in loan payments are evaluated with various other factors to determine if loan is

impaired Generally delinquencies under 90 days are considered insignificant unless certain other factors are present

which indicate impairment is probable The decision to place loan on nonaccrual status is also based on an

evaluation of the borrowers financial condition collateral liquidation value and other factors that affect the

borrowers ability to pay

The Company also internally classifies loans which although current management questions the borrowers ability

to comply with the present repayment terms of the loan agreement These internally classified loans totaled

$49418000 which included the Companys non-performing loans at December 31 2012 as compared to

$67281 .000 at December 31 2011 Of the internally classified loans at December 31 2012 $48955000 are real

estate related loans and $463000 are various other types of loans Borrowers within the real estate related loans have

continued to experience some stress during the current weak economic environment however the Bank has recently

experienced an increase in demand for real estate loans An extended recessionary period will likely cause the

Companys commercial real estate mortgage and land development loans to continue to underperform and may result

in increased levels of internally graded loans which if they continue to deteriorate may negatively impact the

Companys results of operations Management does not anticipate losses on these loans to exceed the amount

already allocated to loan losses unless there is further deterioration of local real estate values

The internally classified loans as percentage of the allowance for loan losses were 193.8% and 274.3%

respectively at December 31 2012 and 2011

The allowance for loan losses is discussed under Critical Accounting Estimates and Provision for Loan Losses

The Company maintains its allowance for loan losses at an amount believed by management to be adequate to

provide for loan losses in the loan portfolio

Essentially all of the Companys loans were from Wilson DeKalb Smith Trousdale Davidson Rutherford and

adjacent counties The Company seeks to exercise prudent risk management in lending including diversification by

loan category and industry segment as well as by identification of credit risks At December 31 2012 no single

industry segment accounted for more than 10% of the Companys portfolio other than construction and real estate

loans

The Companys management believes there is an opportunity to increase the loan portfolio in the Companys primary

market area in 2013 as economic conditions stabilize and possibly begin to improve The Company has targeted

commercial business lending commercial and residential real estate lending and consumer lending Although it is

the Companys objective to achieve loan portfolio equal to approximately 85% of deposit balances various factors

including demand for loans which meet its underwriting standards will likely determine the size of the loan portfolio

in given economic climate As practice the Company generates its own loans and does not buy participations

from other institutions The Company may sell some of the loans it generates to other financial institutions if the

transaction profits the Company and improves the liquidity of the loan portfolio or if the size of the loan exceeds the

Companys lending limits
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Securities

Securities increased 2.3% to $332786000 at year-end 2012 from $325195000 at December 31 2011 and

comprised the second largest and other primary component of the Companys earning assets The increase was

12.0% from year end 2010 to year end 2011 The increase over the last two years was attributed to the Banks deposit

growth exceeding its loan growth during 2011 and 2012 The average yield of the securities portfolio at

December 31 2012 was 1.74% with weighted average life of 4.67 years as compared to an average yield of 2.15%

and weighted average life of 3.9 years at December 31 2011 The weighted average lives on mortgage back

securities reflect the speed payback used for book value calculations

Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held

to maturity and recorded at amortized cost Trading securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value

included in earnings Securities not classified as held to maturity or trading including equity securities with readily

determinable fair values are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and

losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income Purchase premiums and discounts are

recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities Gains and losses on the sale

of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method

The FASB issued accounting guidance on April 2009 related to the recognition and presentation of other-than-

temporary impairment FASB ASC 320-10 See the Impact of New Accounting Standards section for additional

information

Prior to the adoption of the accounting guidance on April 2009 management considered in determining whether

other-than-temporary impairment exists the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less

than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the

Company to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in

fair value Management evaluates the impairment of securities monthly to determine if an other-than-temporary

impairment exists

For equity securities when the Company has decided to sell an impaired available-for-sale security and the entity

does not expect the fair value of the security to fully recover before the expected time of sale the security is deemed

other-than-temporarily impaired in the period in which the decision to sell is made The Company recognizes an

impairment loss when the impairment is deemed other than temporary even if decision to sell has not been made

No securities have been classified as trading securities

The Companys classification of securities as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 is as follows

December 31 2012 December31 2012

In Thousands Held-To-Maturity Available-For-Sale

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Market Value Cost Market Value

U.S Government-sponsored

enterprisesGSE5 122110 122698

Mortgage-backed

Government-sponsored enterprises

GSE5residential 2918 3040 177787 181128

Obligations of state and political 12590 13277 13.214 13452

Subdivision

15508 16317 313.111 317278

Such as Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal Home Loan Banks

Federal Farm Credit Banks and Government National Mortgage Association
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December 31 2012 December31 2011

In Thousands Held-To-Maturity Available-For-Sale

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Market Value Cost Market Value

U.S Government-sponsored

enterprisesGSE5 114819 114926

Mortgage-backed

Government-sponsored enterprises 2425 2528 192989 194167

GSE5residential 12039 12738 1.521 1638

Obligations of state and political

Subdivision 14.464 15.266 $_ 309329 310.731

Such as Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal Home Loan Banks

Federal Farm Credit Banks and Government National Mortgage Association

The classification of portion of the securities portfolio as available-for-sale was made to provide for more flexibility

in asset/liability management and capital management

The following table shows the Companys investments gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by

investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position

at December 31 2012

In Thousands Except Number of Securities

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Number Number

Fair
Unrealized

of Fair Unrealized of Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities Value Losses

Held to Maturity

Securities

Mortgage-backed

USE residential

Obligations of states

and political

subdivisions

Available for Sale

Securities

U.S Government-

sponsored

enterprisesGSE5 22159 55 22159 55

Mortgage backed 7244 32 7244 32

USE residential

Obligations of states

and political 3398 29 10 3.398 29

subdivisions 32801 SLi6 __22 $_ $_3U01 $_fl6

The impaired securities are considered high quality investments in line with normal industry investing practices The

unrealized losses are primarily the result of changes in the interest rate and sector environments Consistent with the

original classification as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity securities the Company intends and has the ability to
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hold the above securities until maturity or market price recovery and as such the impairment of these securities is

not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired

Deposits

The increases in assets in 2012 and 2011 were funded primarily by increases in deposits and the Companys earnings

Total deposits which are the principal source of funds for the Company totaled $1493922000 at December 31

2012 compared to $1406042000 at December 31 2011 The Company has targeted local consumers professionals

and small businesses as its central clientele therefore deposit instruments in the form of demand deposits savings

accounts money market demand accounts certificates of deposits and individual retirement accounts are offered to

customers Management believes the Wilson County Davidson County DeKalb County Smith County Sumner

County Rutherford County and Trousdale County areas are attractive economic markets offering growth

opportunities for the Company however the Company competes with several larger banks that have bank offices in

these counties and therefore no assurances of market growth or maintenance of current market share can be given

Even though the Company is in very competitive market management currently believes that its market share can

be maintained or expanded

The $87880000 or 6.3% growth in deposits in 2012 was due to $19550000 or 18.2% increase in demand

deposits $52838000 or 20.5% increase in NOW accounts $46231000 or 15.8% increase in money market

accounts and $443 1000 or 4.92% increase in savings accounts offset by decrease in certificates of deposits

including individual retirement accounts of $35170000 or 5.3% The average rate paid on average total interest-

bearing deposits was 1.06% for 2012 compared to 1.43% for 2011 reflecting reduction in short-term interest rates

and shift in deposits to lower paying transaction and money market accounts from certificates of deposit The

average rate paid in 2010 was 1.93% Competitive pressure from other banks in our market area relating to deposit

pricing continues to adversely affect the rates paid on deposit accounts as it limits our ability to more fully reduce

deposit rates in line with short-term rates The ratio of average loans to average deposits was 78.8% in 2012 82.0%

in 2011 and 81.3% in 2010 The Company anticipates that during 2013 deposits will continue to shift to shorter term

time deposits due to the current rate environment in anticipation of possible rate increase beginning in 2013

Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligations as of December 31 2012

Less than More than

In Thousands Year Years 3-5 Years Years Total

Long-Term Debt

Operating Leases 83 101 22 206

Purchases

Other Long-Term Liabilities

Total 83 101 22 206

Long-term debt contractual obligations would typically include advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank but at

December 31 2012 the Company had no such advances The Company leases land for certain branch facilities and

automatic teller machine locations Future minimum rental payments required under the terms of these non

cancellable leases are included in operating lease obligations

Off Balance Sheet Arranjements

At December 31 2012 the Company had unfunded loan commitments outstanding of $175 million unfunded lines

of credit of $14 million and outstanding standby letters of credit of $25 million Because these commitments

generally have fixed expiration dates and many will expire without being drawn upon the total commitment level

does not necessarily represent future cash requirements If needed to fund these outstanding commitments the

Companys bank subsidiary has the ability to liquidate Federal funds sold or securities available-for-sale or on

short-term basis to borrow and purchase Federal funds from other financial institutions Additionally the Companys

bank subsidiary could sell participations in these or other loans to correspondent banks As mentioned below Wilson

Bank has been able to fund its ongoing liquidity needs through its stable core deposit base loan payments its

investment security maturities and short-term borrowings
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Liguidit and Asset Manajetnent

The Companys management seeks to maximize net interest income by managing the Companys assets and

liabilities within appropriate constraints on capital liquidity and interest rate risk Liquidity is the ability to maintain

sufficient cash levels necessary to fund operations meet the requirements of depositors and borrowers and fund

attractive investment opportunities Higher levels of liquidity bear corresponding costs measured in terms of lower

yields on short-term more liquid earning assets and higher interest expense involved in extending liability maturities

Liquid assets include cash and cash equivalents investment securities and money market instruments that will mature

within one year At December 31 2012 the Companys liquid assets totaled approximately $232 million

The Company maintains formal asset and liability management process to quantify monitor and control interest

rate risk and to assist management in maintaining stability in the net interest margin under varying interest rate

environments The Company accomplishes this process through the development and implementation of lending

funding and pricing strategies designed to maximize net interest income under varying interest rate environments

subject to specific liquidity and interest rate risk guidelines

Analysis of rate sensitivity and rate gap analysis are the primary tools used to assess the direction and magnitude of

changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates Included in the analysis are cash flows and

maturities of financial instruments held for purposes other than trading changes in market conditions loan volumes

and pricing and deposit volume and mix These assumptions are inherently uncertain and as result net interest

income can not be precisely estimated nor can the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest income be

precisely predicted Actual results will differ due to timing magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and

changes in market conditions and managements strategies among other factors

The Companys primary source of liquidity is stable core deposit base In addition short-term borrowings loan

payments and investment security maturities provide secondary source At December 31 2012 the Company had

liability
sensitive position negative gap Liability sensitivity means that more of the Companys liabilities are

capable of re-pricing over certain time frames than its assets The interest rates associated with these liabilities may

not actually change over this period but are capable of changing

Interest rate risk sensitivity management focuses on the earnings risk associated with changing interest rates

Management seeks to maintain profitability in both immediate and long term earnings through funds

management/interest rate risk management The Companys rate sensitivity position has an important impact on

earnings Senior management of the Company meets monthly to analyze its rate sensitivity position These meetings

focus on the spread between the Companys cost of funds and interest yields generated primarily through loans and

investments

The Companys securities portfolio consists of earning assets that provide interest income For those securities

classified as held-to-maturity the Company has the ability and intent to hold these securities to maturity or on long-

term basis Securities classified as available-for-sale include securities intended to be used as part of the Companys

asset/liability strategy and/or securities that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates prepayment risk the

need or desire to increase capital and similar economic factors At December 31 2012 securities totaling

approximately $4 million mature or will be subject to rate adjustments within the next twelve months

secondary source of liquidity is the Companys loan portfolio At December 31 2012 loans totaling approximately

$483 million either will become due or will be subject to rate adjustments within twelve months from that date

Continued emphasis will be placed on structuring adjustable rate loans

As for liabilities certificates of deposit of $100000 or greater totaling approximately $153 million will become due

or reprice during the next twelve months Historically there has been no significant reduction in immediately

withdrawable accounts such as negotiable order of withdrawal accounts money market demand accounts demand

deposit accounts and regular savings accounts Management anticipates that there will be no significant withdrawals

from these accounts in 2013

29

WBrJ Annual Report2Ol2



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows the rate sensitivity gaps for different time periods as of December 31 2012

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gaps One Year

December3l2012 1-90 91-180 181-365 And

In Thousands Days Days Days Longer Total

Interest-earning assets 271637 98533 158880 1013784 1542834

Interest-bearing liabilities 904510 101703 108.641 262699 1377553

Interest-rate sensitivity gap 632.873 3.170 50239 751.085 165.281

Cumulative gap 632873 636043 585.804 165281

The Company also uses simulation modeling to evaluate both the level of interest rate sensitivity as well as potential

balance sheet strategies Senior management meets quarterly to analyze the interest rate shock simulation The

interest rate simulation model is based on number of assumptions The assumptions relate primarily to loan and

deposit growth asset and liability prepayments the call features of investment securities interest rates and balance

sheet management strategies As of December 2012 200 basis point rate shock was forecast to decrease net

interest income an estimated $5.7 million or 9.9% over the next twelve months as compared to rates remaining

stable In addition the 200 basis point rate shock is estimated to increase the volatility of equity capital by 0.30%

-200 basis point rate shock is not considered to be an effective shock considering the current short-term rate

environment

Management believes that with present maturities the anticipated growth in deposit base and the efforts of

management in its asset/liability management program liquidity will not pose problem in the near term future At

the present time there are no known trends or any known commitments demands events or uncertainties that will

result in or that are reasonably likely to result in the Companys liquidity changing in materially adverse way

Capital Resources Capital Position and Dividends

Capital

At December 31 2012 total stockholders equity was $169698000 or 10.1% of total assets which compares with

$157348000 or 10.0% of total assets at December 31 2011 and $144333000 or 9.7% of total assets at

December 31 2010 The dollar increase in stockholders equity during 2012 reflects the Companys net income

of $12148000 less cash dividends of S.85 per share totaling $6243000 ii the issuance of 106230 shares of

common stock for 545 18000 as reinvestment of cash dividends iii the issuance of 8788 shares of common stock

pursuant to exercise of stock options for $189000 iv the net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities of

$1707000 and stock based compensation expense of $31000 Cash dividends increased from 5.60 to 5.85 as

result of special 5.25 dividend approved by the Board of Directors in celebration of the Banks 25 year

anniversary Management expects dividends to reduce to normal levels in 2013

The Companys principal regulators have established minimum risk-based capital requirements and leverage capital

requirements for the Company and its subsidiary bank These guidelines classify capital into two categories of Tier

and Total risk-based capital Total risk-based capital consists of Tier or core capital essentially common equity

less intangible assets and Tier II capital essentially qualifying long-term debt of which Wilson Bank has none and

part of the allowance for possible loan losses In determining risk-based capital requirements assets are assigned

risk-weights of 0% to 100% depending on regulatory assigned levels of credit risk associated with such assets

Under the Federal Reserves regulations for bank holding company like the Company to be considered well

capitalized it must maintain Total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10% Tier risk-based capital ratio of at

least 6% and not be subject to written agreement order or directive to maintain specific capital level In addition

the Federal Reserve has established minimum leverage ratio guidelines for bank holding companies These

guidelines provide that minimum ratio of Tier capital to average assets less goodwill and other specified

intangible assets of at least 4% should be maintained by most bank holding companies
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On the horizon there are proposed regulations concerning the capital requirements of financial institutions as result

of the publication of Risk-Based Capital Standards Advanced Capital Adequacy FranieworkBasel

Establishment of Risk-Based Capital Floor by the 0CC FDIC and Federal Reserve This rule amends the

advanced risk-based capital adequacy standards advanced approaches rules in manner that is consistent with

certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and the general risk-based capital rules to provide limited flexibility

consistent with section 171b of the Dodd-Frank Act for recognizing the relative risk of certain assets generally not

held by depository institutions If this rule goes into effect management has assessed the impact of the regulation and

its impact on capital adequacy and determined that it will not have significant negative impact on the Company

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to

maintain minimum amounts and ratios set forth in the following table of total and Tier capital as defined in the

regulations to risk-weighted assets as defined and of Tier capital as defined to average assets as defined As of

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 the Company and the Bank are considered to be well capitalized under

regulatory definitions To be categorized as well capitalized an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based

Tier risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables

The Companys and the Banks actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

are as presented in the tables

December 31 2012

Total capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated

Wilson Bank

Tier capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated

Wilson Bank

Tier capital

To average assets

Consolidated

Wilson Bank

December 31 2011

Total capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated

Wilson Bank

To average assets

Consolidated

Wilson Bank

Minimum Capital

Requirements

Minimum To Be Well

Capitalized Under

Applicable Regulatory

Provisions

Amount

Actual

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Ratio

178162 14.2% 100373 8.0% 125466 10.0%

176652 14.1 100228 8.0 125285 10.0

162321 12.9 50332 4.0 $75498 6.0

160811 12.8 50253 4.0 75380 6.0

162321 9.8 66253 4.0 N/A N/A

160811 9.7 66314 4.0 82892 5.0

Tier capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated

Wilson Bank

Tier capital

$166534 14.0% 95162 8.0% 118953 10.0%

164775 13.9 94835 8.0 118543 10.0

151566 12.8 47364 4.0 $71047 6.0

149817 12.6 47561 4.0 71341 6.0

151566 9.7 62501 4.0 N/A N/A

149817 9.6 62424 4.0 78030 5.0
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Companys primary component of market risk is interest rate volatility Fluctuations in interest rates will

ultimately impact both the level of income and expense recorded on large portion of the Companys assets and

liabilities and the market value of all interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities other than those which

possess short term to maturity Based upon the nature of the Companys operations the Company is not subject to

foreign currency exchange or commodity price risk

Interest rate risk sensitivity management focuses on the earnings risk associated with changing interest rates

Management seeks to maintain profitability in both short term and long term earnings through funds

management/interest rate risk management The Companys rate sensitivity position has an important impact on

earnings Senior management of the Company meets monthly to analyze the rate sensitivity position These

meetings focus on the spread between the cost of funds and interest yields generated primarily through loans and

investments

The following table provides information about the Companys financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in

interest rates as of December 31 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Expected Maturity Date Year Ending December 31

Fair

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total Value

Earning assets

Loans net of unearned interest

Variable rate 46608 22632 12027 12123 27876 632235 753501 753501

Average interest rate 5.06% 4.23% 4.53% 5.08% 4.89% 5.53% 5.39%

Fixed rate 182750 56856 38408 26968 30661 78464 414107 438660

Average interest rate 5.53% 5.48% 5.86% 5.96% 5.17% 4.76% 5.41%

Securities 3890 4822 6409 10908 8579 294011 328619 333595

Average interest rate 2.01% .91% 1.24% 1.22% 1.41% 1.59% 1.74%

Loans held for sale 15648 15648 15648

Average interest rate 3.09% 3.09%

Federal funds sold 23780 23780 23780

Average interest rate .44 .44%

Interest-bearing deposits 1104246 152637 64858 14133 31095 1366969 1368640

Average interest rate .84% 1.33% 1.68% 2.04% 1.75% 0% 1.06%

Securities sold under

repurchase agreements 10584 10584 10593

Average interest rate .66% .66%

Advances from Federal

Home Loan Bank

Average interest rate
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Impact of Inflation

Although interest rates are significantly affected by inflation the inflation rate is believed to be immaterial when

reviewing the Companys results of operations

Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which defines fair value establishes

framework for measuring fair value in U.S GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements The definition of fair value focuses on the exit price i.e the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date not the entry price i.e the price that would be paid to acquire

the asset or received to assume the liability at the measurement date The statement emphasizes that

fair value is market-based measurement not an entity-specific measurement Therefore the fair

value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability

Valuation Hierarchy

FASB ASC 820 establishes three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements

The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or

liability as of the measurement date The three levels are defined as follows

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical

assets or liabilities in active markets

Level inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and

liabilities in active markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either

directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the financial instrument

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair

value measurement

financial instruments categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement Following is description of the valuation

methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value as well as the general

classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy

Assets

Securities available-/br-sale Where quoted prices are available for identical securities in an active market

securities are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy Level securities include highly liquid

government securities and certain other financial products If quoted market prices are not available then

fair values are estimated by using pricing models that use observable inputs or quoted prices of securities

with similar characteristics and are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy In certain cases

where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation and more complex pricing

models or discounted cash flows are used securities are classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy

Impaired loans loan is considered to be impaired when it is probable the Company will be unable to

collect all principal and interest payments due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan

agreement Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected payments using the loans

original effective rate as the discount rate the loans observable market price or the fair value of the

collateral less selling costs if the loan is collateral dependent If the recorded investment in the impaired

loan exceeds the measure of fair value valuation allowance may be established as component of the

allowance for loan losses or the expense is recognized as charge-off Impaired loans are classified within
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Level of the hierarchy due to the unobservable inputs used in determining their fair value such as

collateral values and the borrowers underlying financial condition

Other real estate owned Other real estate owned OREO represents real estate foreclosed upon by the

Company through loan defaults by customers or acquired in lieu of foreclosure Substantially all of these

amounts relate to lots homes and development projects that are either completed or are in various stages of

construction for which the Company believes it has adequate collateral Upon foreclosure the property is

recorded at the lower of cost or fair value based on appraised value less selling costs estimated as of the

date acquired with any loss recognized as charge-off through the allowance for loan losses Additional

OREO losses for subsequent valuation downward adjustments are determined on specific property basis

and are included as component of noninterest expense along with holding costs Any gains or losses

realized at the time of disposal are also reflected in noninterest expense as applicable OREO is included

in Level of the valuation hierarchy due to the lack of observable market inputs into the determination of

fair value Appraisal values are property-specific and sensitive to the changes in the overall economic

environment

Other assets Included in other assets are certain assets carried at fair value including the cash surrender

value of bank owned life insurance policies and annuity contracts The Company uses financial

information received from insurance carriers indicating the performance of the insurance policies and cash

surrender values in determining the carrying value of life insurance The Company reflects these assets

within Level of the valuation hierarchy due to the unobservable inputs included in the valuation of these

items The Company does not consider the fair values of these policies to be materially sensitive to

changes in these unobservable inputs

The following tables present the financial instruments carried at fair value as of December 2012 and

December 31 2011 by caption on the consolidated balance sheet and by FASB ASC 820 valuation

hierarchy as described above in thousands

Models with Models with

Total Carrying Significant Significant

Value in the Quoted Market Observable Unobservable

Consolidated Prices in an Market Market

Balance Active Market Parameters Parameters

Sheet Level Level Level

December 31 2012

Investment securities available-for-sale

U.S Government sponsored enterprises 122698 122698

Mortgage-backed securities 181128 181128

State and municipal securities 13.452 13.452

Total investment securities available-for-sale 317278 317278

Otherassets 6.315 6315

Total assets at fair value 323.593 317.278 6315

December 31 2011

Investment securities available-for-sale

US Government sponsored enterprises 114926 114926

Mortgage-backed securities 194167 194167

State and municipal securities 1.63 1638

Total investment securities available-for-sale 310731 310731

Other assets 2.001 2001

Total assets at fair value 12.732
_______

310.731 _2Q0i
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Models with Models with

Total Carrying Quoted Significant Significant

Value in the Market Observable Unobservable

Consolidated Active Market Market

Balance Market Parameters Parameters

Sheet Level Level2 Level

December 31 2012

Other real estate owned 15307 15307

Nonperforming loans net 34.125 34125

Total $__49.432 49432

December 31 2011

Other real estate owned 19117 19117

Nonperforming loans net 49474 49474

Total $__5S59i_ 68.591

Amount is net of valuation allowance of $6.9 million at December 31 2012 and $9.0 million at December 31 2011

as required by ASC 310-10 Receivables

In the case of the bond portfolio the Company monitors the valuation technique utilized by various pricing

agencies to ascertain when transfers between levels have been affected The nature of the remaining assets

and liabilities is such that transfers in and out of any level are expected to be rare For the twelve months

ended December 31 2012 there were no transfers between Levels 12 or

The table below includes roll forward of the balance sheet amounts for the twelve months ended

December 31 2012 including the change in fair value for financial instruments classified by the Company

within Level of the valuation hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring

basis When determination is made to classify financial instrument within Level of the valuation

hierarchy the determination is based upon the significance of the unobservable factors to the overall fair

value measurement However since Level financial instruments typically include in addition to the

unobservable or Level components observable components that is components that are actively quoted

and can be validated to external sources the gains and losses in the table below include changes in fair

value due in part to observable factors that are part of the valuation methodology in thousands

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31

2012 2011

Other Other Other Other

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fair value January 2001 1554

Total realized gains included in income 242 61

Change in unrealized gains/losses included

in other comprehensive income for

assets and liabilities still held at

December 31

Purchases issuances and settlements net 4072 386

Transfers out of Level

Fair value December 31 63i5
Total realized gains included in income

related to financial assets and

liabilities still on the consolidated

balance sheet at December 31
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The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures

for financial instruments that are not measured at fair value In cases where quoted market prices are not

available fair values are based on estimates using discounted cash flow models Those models are

significantly affected by the assumptions used including the discount rates estimates of future cash flows

and borrower creditworthiness The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent

information available to management as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 Such amounts

have not been revalued for
purposes

of these consolidated financial statements since those dates and

therefore current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein

Held-to-maturity securities Estimated fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market

prices where available If quoted market prices are not available then fair values are estimated by using

pricing models that use observable inputs or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics

Loans The fair value of our loan portfolio includes credit risk factor in the determination of the fair

value of our loans This credit risk assumption is intended to approximate the fair value that market

participant would realize in hypothetical orderly transaction Our loan portfolio is initially fair valued

using segmented approach We divide our loan portfolio into the following categories variable rate

loans impaired loans and all other loans The results are then adjusted to account for credit risk

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk fair values

approximate carrying values Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow

models or based on the fair value of the underlying collateral For other loans fair values are estimated

using discounted cash flow models using current market interest rates offered for loans with similar terms

to borrowers of similar credit quality The values derived from the discounted cash flow approach for each

of the above portfolios are then further discounted to incorporate credit risk to determine the exit price

Morta2e loans held-for-sale Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value

The estimate of fair value is equal to the carlying value of these loans as they are usually sold within few

weeks of their origination

Deposits Securities sold under a2reements to repurchase Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Subordinated debt and other borrowings The canying amounts of demand deposits savings deposits

and securities sold under agreements to repurchase approximate their fair values Fair values for

certificates of deposit are estimated using discounted cash flow models using current market interest rates

offered on certificates with similar remaining maturities

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments The fair values of the Companys off-balance-sheet financial

instruments are based on fees charged to enter into similar agreements However commitments to extend

credit do not represent significant value to the Company until such commitments are funded

The following table presents the carrying amounts estimated fair value and placement in the fair value

hierarchy of the Companys financial instruments at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 This

table excludes financial instruments for which the carrying amount approximates fair value For short-term

financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents the carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair

value due to the relatively short time between the origination of the instrument and its expected realization

For financial liabilities such as noninterest bearing demand interest-bearing demand and savings deposits

the carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value due to these products having no stated maturity
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Quoted Models with Models with

Market Significant Significant

Prices in Observable Unobservable

Carrying/ Estimated an Active Market Market

Notional Fair Value Market Parameters Parameters

in Thousands Amount Level Level Level

December 31 2012

Financial assets

Securities held-to-maturity 15508 16317 16317

Loansnet 1142111 1166664 1166664

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 15648 15648 15648

Financial liabilities

Deposits and securities sold

under agreements to

repurchase 1504506 1506186 1506186

Oilbalance sheet instruments

Commitments to extend

credit

Standby letters of credit

December 31 2011

Financial assets

Securities held-to-maturity 14464 15266 15266

Loans net 1098733 1107440 1107440

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 14775 14775 14775

Financial liabilities

Deposits and securities sold

under agreements to

repurchase 1413461 1415460 1415460

Qilbalance sheet instruments

Commitments to extend

credit

Standby letters of credit

Estimated fair values are consistent with an exit-price concept The assumptions used to estimate the fair values are intended

to approximate those that market-participant would realize in hypothetical orderly transaction

Impact of New Accounting Standards

In June 2011 FASB issued ASU No 20 11-05 Comprehensive Income Presentation of Comprehensive Income

This ASU eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of

stockholders equity Rather it gives an entity the choice to present the components of net income and other

comprehensive income in either single continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements The

components of comprehensive income and timing of reclassification of an item to net income do not change with this

update ASU 20 11-05 requires retrospective application and was effective for annual and interim periods beginning

after December 15 2011 The Company adopted this ASU in the first quarter of 2012 and has presented separate

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

In September 2011 FASB issued ASU No 2011-8 Intangibles Goodwill and Other regarding testing goodwill

for impairment The new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform qualitative assessment to
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determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If

an entity determines that this is the case it is required to perform the currently prescribed two-step goodwill

impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be

recognized for that reporting unit if any Based on the qualitative assessment if an entity determines that the fair

value of reporting unit is more than its canying amount the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required The

new guidance was adopted by the Company beginning January 2012 and was used in our annual assessment as of

December 31 2012 The results of our qualitative assessment indicated that the fair value of our reporting units was

more than its carrying value and accordingly the two-step goodwill impairment test was not performed

In April 2011 FASB issued ASU No 2011-02 Creditors Determination of Whether Restructuring Is Troubled

Debt Restructuring intended to provide additional guidance to assist creditors in determining whether restructuring

of receivable meets the criteria to be considered troubled debt restructuring The amendments in this ASU were

effective for the quarter ended September 30 2011

As result of applying these amendments the Company reviewed all substandard loans that were renewed since

January 2011 and in 2011 identified two new loan modifications that qualified as troubled debt restructuring

Pursuant to the guidance set forth in the standard an impairment amount was calculated on each identified

transaction consistent with the methodology followed for other impaired loans described above
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Wilson Bank Holding Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wilson Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary as of December 31

20 12 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of earnings comprehensive earnings changes in stockholders equity and cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 2012 We also have audited Wilson Bank Holding Company

and Subsidiarys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Wilson Bank

Holding Companys management is responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board PCAOB United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of

any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial

position of Wilson Bank Holding Company and Subsidiary as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion Wilson Bank Holding Company maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

I44t

Nashville Tennessee

February 2013
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011

ASSETS

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of $25497 and $24525 respectively 1142111 1098733

Securities

Held-to-maturity at amortized cost market value $16317 and $15266

respectively 15508 14464

Available-for-sale at market amortized cost $313111 and $309329

respectively 317278 310731

Total securities 332786 325195

Loans held for sale 15648 14775
Federal funds sold 23780 13215

Restricted equity securities at cost 3012 3.012

Total earning assets 1.517.337 1454930

Cash and due from banks 82884 40959

Premises and equipment net 35853 35437
Accrued interest receivable 5426 5930

Deferred income taxes 8243 8488

Other real estate 15307 19117

Goodwill 4805 4805

Other intangible assets net 112

Other assets 10965 7.592

Total assets L680.820 1577370

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EOUITY

Deposits 1493922 1406042

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 10584 7419

Accrued interest and other liabilities 6.6 16 6561

Total liabilities 1511122 1.420.022

Stockholders equity

Common stock par value $2.00 per share authorized 15000000 shares

7419204 and 7304186 shares issued and outstanding respectively 14838 14608
Additional paid-in capital 51242 46734

Retained earnings 101046 95141

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities net of income

taxes of$l595 and $537 respectively 2.572 865

Total stockholders equity 169.698 157348

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 1.680.820 1.577370

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Dollars In Thousands except per share data

2012 2011 2010

Interest income

Interest and fees on loans 66080 66031 67356

Interest and dividends on securities

Taxable securities 5253 5437 7927

Exempt from Federal income taxes 464 420 453

Interest on loans held for sale 307 237 237

Interest on Federal funds sold 129 97 78

Interest and dividends on restricted equity securities 128 128 129

Total interest income 72361 72.350 76180

Interest expense

Interest on negotiable order of withdrawal accounts 1942 2176 2554

Interest on money market accounts and other savings accounts 2705 2966 3167

Interest on certificates of deposit and individual retirement

accounts 9403 12693 18256

Interest on securities sold under repurchase agreements 56 53 70

Interest on Federal funds purchased

Total interest expense
14107 17890 24052

Net interest income before provision for loan losses 58254 54460 52128

Provision for loan losses 9.528 8678 14834

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 48726 45782 37294

Non-interest income 16035 14476 14266

Non-interest expense 45.098 43663 36705

Earnings before income taxes 19663 16595 14855

Income taxes 7515 6545 5828

Net earnings 12.148 10.050 _9O27

Basic earnings per common share 1.65 1.38 L25

Diluted earnings per common share 1.65 JJ8 L25
Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 7.360485 7.280.907

Diluted 7.36544 7.288.122 __________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Net earnings 12148 10050 9027

Other comprehensive earnings losses net of tax

Net unrealized gains losses on available-for-sale securities

arising during period net of taxes of $1158 $2685

and $1578 respectively 1867 4330 2546
Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net

earnings net of taxes of$100 $73 and $204 respectively 160 119 328
Other comprehensive earnings losses 1707 4211 2874

Comprehensive earnings 13855 14.261 _____________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Balance December 31 2009

Cash dividends declared $60 per share

Issuance of 79816 shares of stock pursuant

to dividend reinvestment plan

5969 common shares repurchased

Issuance of 3659 shares of stock pursuant

to exercise of stock options

Share based compensation expense

Net change in unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities during the

year net of taxes of$l782

Net earnings for the year

Balance December 31 2010

Cash dividends declared $60 per share

Issuance of 79962 shares of stock pursuant

to dividend reinvestment plan

6148 common shares repurchased

Issuance of 5284 shares of stock pursuant

to exercise of stock options

Share based compensation expense

Dollars In Thousands

Net Unrealized

Gain Loss On

Retained Available-For-

Earnings Sale Securities Total

84712 472 139557

4300 4300

9027

89439

4348

2874

3346

2874

9.027

144333

4348

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Additional

Paid-In

Capital

41022

160 2892 3052

12 213 225

Common
Stock

____________ _____________ ______________ _____________

14295

69 76

20 20

14450 43790

160 3058 3218

13 237 250

11 99 110

24 24

4211 4211

10050 10050

14608 46734 95141 865 157348

6243 6243

212 4306 4518

18 171 189

31 31

1707 1707

12148 12.148

14838 51.242 10j44 2572 1699

Net change in unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities during the

year net of taxes of $2612

Net earnings for the year

Balance December 31 2011

Cash dividends declared $85 per share

Issuance of 106230 shares of stock pursuant

to dividend reinvestment plan

Issuance of 8788 shares of stock pursuant

to exercise of stock options

Share based compensation expense

Net change in unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities during the

year net of taxes of$l058

Net earnings for the year

Balance December 31 2012



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 76329 75013 78349

Feesreceived 12171 12215 11459

Other income received

Proceeds from sales of loans 137836 106179 107495

Origination of loans held for sale 135107 111040 108038
Interest paid 14876 18642 25196
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 38789 35835 31314
Income taxes paid 8152 7666 8712

Net cash provided by operating activities 29.4 15 20224 24043

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of available-for-sale securities 217500 252525 476633
Proceeds from calls maturities and paydowns of available-for-sale

securities 173266 197133 384761

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 37353 26452 59532

Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 2587 3348 3452
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of held-to-maturity securities 1437 2195 2199

Loans made to customers net of repayments 61432 47353 4030
Purchase of annuity contracts and life insurance 4072 386
Purchase of bank premises and equipment 1946 4987 2603
Proceeds from sale of other assets 70 94 132

Proceeds from sale of other real estate 8977 4020 3618

Net cash used in investing activities 66.434 78705 36.476

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in non-interest bearing savings NOW and money
market deposit accounts 123050 92092 100164

Net decrease in time deposits 35170 17332 79588
Net increase in securities under agreements to repurchase 3165 883 37

Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances net 13
Dividends paid 6243 4348 4300
Proceeds from sale of common stock pursuant to dividend

reinvestment 4518 3218 3052

Proceeds from sale of common stock pursuant to exercise of

stock options 189 110 76

Repurchase of common shares 250 225
Net cash provided by financing activities 89509 74.373 19203

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 52490 15892 6770

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 54.174 38282 31512

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 106.664 54174 38282

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Continued

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Activities

Unrealized gain loss in value of securities available-for-sale

net of taxes of$1058 in 2012 $2612 in 2011 and $1782 in 2010

Non-cash transfers from loans to other real estate

Non-cash transfers from other real estate to loans

Non-cash transfers from loans to other assets

5106

9528

31

814
3286

259
873

177

700

504

769
648

17267

29415

1.702

923
783

4228

8678

24

1471
3560

15

192
6930

350

1340

322

752
1.002

10174

20.224

4.211

JLL1Q

4.214

77

9027

2781

14834

20

2389
1113

21

532
2818

495
1954

1311

1144
360

15016

24.043

5JZ0

1272

171

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011

12148 10050

2010

Reconciliation of net earnings to net cash provided by operating

activities

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation amortization and accretion

Provision for loan losses

Share based compensation expense

Provision for deferred taxes

Write downs and loss on sales of other real estate

Loss on sales of other assets

Security gains

Increase in loans held for sale

Increase decrease in taxes payable

Decrease in other assets

Decrease in accrued interest receivable

Decrease in interest payable

Increase in accrued expenses

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Wilson Bank Holding Company the Company and Wilson Bank Trust

Wilson Bank are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and

conform to general practices within the banking industry The following is brief summary of the significant policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary

Wilson Bank All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Nature of Operations

Wilson Bank operates under state bank charter and provides full banking services As state bank Wilson

Bank is subject to regulations of the Tennessee Department of Financial Institutions and the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC The areas served by Wilson Bank include Wilson County DeKalb County

Rutherford County Smith County Trousdale County Sumner County and eastern Davidson County

Tennessee and surrounding counties in Middle Tennessee Services are provided at the main office and

twenty-four branch locations

Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States U.S GAAP management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates Material

estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of

the allowance for loan losses the valuation of deferred tax assets other-than-temporary impairments of

securities and the fair value of financial instruments

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Companys activities are with customers located within Middle Tennessee The types of

securities in which the Company invests are included in note The types of lending in which the Company

engages are included in note The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one

industry or customer other than as disclosed in note

Residential 1-4 family commercial real estate and construction mortgage loans represented 29% 40% and

16% and 31% 37% and 15% of the loan portfolio at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Loans

The Company grants mortgage commercial and consumer loans to customers substantial portion of the

loan portfolio is represented by mortgage loans throughout Middle Tennessee The ability of the Companys

debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in this

area

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay

off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for unearned income the

allowance for loan losses and any unamortized deferred fees or costs on originated loans and premiums or

discounts on purchased loans

Loan origination fees net of certain direct origination costs as well as premiums and discounts are deferred

and amortized on straight line basis over the respective term of the loan

As part of our routine credit monitoring process loans receive risk ratings by the assigned credit officer and

are subject to validation by our independent loan review department Risk ratings are categorized as pass

special mention substandard or doubtful The Company believes that our categories follow those outlined by

our primary regulatory
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Loans Continued

Generally the accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90

days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection Credit card loans and other

personal loans are typically charged off no later than when they become 180 days past due Past due status is

based on contractual terms of the loan In all cases loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an

earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is reversed

against interest income The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery

method until qualifying for return to accrual Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and

interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through provision for

loan losses charged to earnings Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes

the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the

allowance

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on monthly basis by management and is based upon

managements monthly review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience the nature

and volume of the loan portfolio adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay estimated

value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions This evaluation is inherently

subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes

available

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance we also consider the results of our ongoing independent loan

review process We undertake this process both to ascertain whether there are loans in the portfolio whose

credit quality has weakened over time and to assist in our overall evaluation of the risk characteristics of the

entire loan portfolio Our loan review process includes the judgment of management independent loan

reviewers and reviews that may have been conducted by third-party reviewers We incorporate relevant loan

review results in the loan impairment determination In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of

their examination process will periodically review the Companys allowance for loan losses and may require

the Company to record adjustments to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to

them at the time of their examinations

In addition to the independent loan review process the aforementioned risk ratings are subject to continual

review by the loan officer to determine that the appropriate risk ratings are being utilized in our allowance for

loan loss process Each risk rating is also subject to review by our independent loan review department

Currently our independent loan review department targets reviews of 100% of existing loan relationships

with aggregate debt of $1.0 million and greater and new loans with aggregate debt of $500000 and greater

In addition loan review targets portfolio segments loans assigned to particular lending officer and loans

with four or more renewals

The allowance consists of allocated and general components The allocated component relates to loans that

are classified as impaired For those loans that are classified as impaired an allowance is established when

the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than

the carrying value of that loan The general component covers nonclassified loans and is based on historical

charge-off experience and other adjustments based on managements assessment of internal or external

influences on credit quality that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Summary of Sijiificant Accountinjz Policies Continued

Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the

Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the

contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining impairment

include payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest

payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally

are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment

shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and

the borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment

record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment is measured

on loan by loan basis for commercial mortgage and agricultural loans by either the present value of

expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans obtainable market price

or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly

the Company does not separately identify individual consumer loans for impairment disclosures unless such

loans are the subject of restructuring agreement due to financial difficulties of the borrower

Debt and Equity Securities

Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as

held to maturity and recorded at amortized cost Trading securities are recorded at fair value with changes

in fair value included in earnings Securities not classified as held to maturity or trading including equity

securities with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair

value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms

of the securities Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined

using the specific identification method

Other-than-temporary Impairment decline in the fair value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity

security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-temporary results in reduction in the carrying amount of

the security To determine whether impairment is other-than-temporary management considers whether the

entity expects to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security by reviewing the present value of the

future cash flows associated with the security The shortfall of the present value of the cash flows expected

to be collected in relation to the amortized cost basis is referred to as credit loss and is deemed to be other-

than-temporary impairment If credit loss is identified the credit loss is recognized as charge to earnings

and new cost basis for the security is established If management concludes that no credit loss exists and it

is not more-likely-than-not that it will be required to sell the security before maturity then the security is not

other-than-temporarily impaired and the shortfall is recorded as component of equity

No securities have been classified as trading securities

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Company as member of the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB Cincinnati system is required to

maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB Based on redemption provisions of the FHLB the

stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost Management reviews for impairment based on the

ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the FHLB stock

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or fair value

For loans carried at lower of cost or fair value gains and losses on loans sales sales proceeds minus carrying

value are recorded in non-interest income and direct loan origination costs and fees are deferred at

origination of the loan and are recognized in non-interest income upon sale of the loan
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is computed primarily by the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the related assets Gain or loss on items retired and otherwise disposed of is

credited or charged to operations and cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the asset

and accumulated depreciation accounts

Expenditures for major renovations and improvements of premises and equipment are capitalized and those

for maintenance and repairs are charged to earnings as incurred

Other Real Estate

Assets acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value

less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing new cost basis Subsequent to their acquisition by

the Company valuations of these assets are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried

at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell Revenue and expenses from operations and

changes in the valuation allowance any direct write-downs are included in net expenses from foreclosed

assets

Intangible Assets

The Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC 310

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets requires that management determine the allocation of intangible assets

into identifiable groups at the date of acquisition and that appropriate amortization periods be established

Under the provisions of FASB ASC 310 goodwill is not to be amortized rather it is to be monitored for

impairment and written down to the impairment value at the time impairment occurs The Company has

determined that no impairment loss needs to be recognized related to its goodwill

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand amounts due from

banks and Federal funds sold Generally Federal funds sold are purchased and sold for one-day periods

Management makes deposits only with financial institutions it considers to be financially sound

Long-Term Assets

Premises and equipment intangible assets and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when

events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows If

impaired the assets are recorded at fair value

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Substantially all repurchase agreement liabilities represent amounts advanced by various customers

Securities are pledged to cover these liabilities which are not covered by Federal deposit insurance

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for Income Taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance

FASB ASC 740 Income Taxes On January 2007 the Company adopted accounting guidance related to

accounting for uncertainty in income taxes which sets out consistent framework to determine the

appropriate level of tax reserves to maintain for uncertain tax positions
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Sutnmarv of Sienificant Accountinif Policies Continued

Income Taxes Continued

The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense current and deferred

Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the

provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues The Company

determines deferred income taxes using the liability or balance sheet method Under this method the net

deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of

assets and liabilities and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they

occur

Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods

Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is more likely than not based on the technical merits that the tax

position will be realized or sustained upon examination The term more likely than not means likelihood of

more than 50 percent the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related

appeals or litigation processes if any tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition

threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has greater than 50

percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with taxing authority that has full knowledge of all

relevant information The determination of whether or not tax position has met the more-likely-than-not

recognition threshold considers the facts circumstances and information available at the reporting date and is

subject to managements judgment Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance if based on the

weight of evidence available it is more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred tax asset will not

be realized

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as component of income tax expense

Stock Options

Stock compensation accounting guidance FASB ASC 718 Compensation Stock Compensation requires

that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements

That cost will be measured based on the grant date fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued

The stock compensation accounting guidance covers wide range of share-based compensation arrangements

including stock options restricted share plans performance-based awards share appreciation rights and

employee share purchase plans

The stock compensation accounting guidance requires that compensation cost for all stock awards be

calculated and recognized over the employees service period generally defined as the vesting period For

awards with graded-vesting compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite

service period for the entire award The Black-Scholes model is used to estimate the fair value of stock

options

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred by the Company and totaled $1230000 $1019000 and

$813000 for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Earnines Per Share

Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-

average number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share reflects

additional potential common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares

had been issued as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance Potential

common shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options and are

determined using the treasury stock method
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions

as more fully disclosed in note 21 of the consolidated financial statements Fair value estimates involve

uncertainties and matters of significant judgment Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could

significantly affect the estimates

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 and 2010 figures to conform to the presentation for

2012

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business Wilson Bank has entered into off-balance-sheet financial instruments

consisting of commitments to extend credit commitments under credit card arrangements commercial letters

of credit and standby letters of credit Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements

when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received

Impact of New Accounting Standards

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 20 11-05 Comprehensive Income Presentation of Comprehensive

Income This ASU eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of

the statement of stockholders equity Rather it gives an entity the choice to present the components of net

income and other comprehensive income in either single continuous statement or two separate but

consecutive statements The components of comprehensive income and timing of reclassification of an item

to net income do not change with this update ASU 2011-05 requires retrospective application and was

effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15 2011 The Company adopted this

ASU in the first quarter of 2012 and has presented separate Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive

Income

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 201 1-8 Intangibles Goodwill and Other regarding testing

goodwill for impairment The new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform qualitative

assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its

carrying amount If an entity determines that this is the case it is required to perform the currently prescribed

two-step goodwill impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of

goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that reporting unit if any Based on the qualitative

assessment if an entity determines that the fair value of reporting unit is more than its carrying amount the

two-step goodwill impairment test is not required The new guidance was adopted by the Company

beginning January 2012 and was used in our annual assessment as of December 31 2012 The results of

our qualitative assessment indicated that the fair value of our reporting units was more than its carrying value

and accordingly the two-step goodwill impairment test was not performed

In April 2011 FASB issued ASU No 201 1-02 Creditors Determination of Whether Restructuring Is

Troubled Debt Restructuring intended to provide additional guidance to assist creditors in determining

whether restructuring of receivable meets the criteria to be considered troubled debt restructuring The

amendments in this ASU were effective for the quarter ended September 30 2011

As result of applying these amendments the Company reviewed all substandard loans that were renewed

since January 2011 and in 2011 identified two new loan modifications that qualified as troubled debt

restructuring Pursuant to the guidance set forth in the standard an impairment amount was calculated on

each identified transaction consistent with the methodology followed for other impaired loans described

above
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

The classification of loans at December 31 2012 and 2011 is as follows

In Thousands

2012 2011

Mortgage loans on real estate

Residential 1-4 family 341977 344029

Multifamily 16140 9791

Commercial 469757 422531

Construction 190356 166460

Farmland 26319 35691

Secondmortgages 12477 14711

Equity lines of credit 36260 39307

Total mortgage loans on real estate 1093286 1032520

Commercial loans 30545 38736

Agriculture loans 2.238 2.556

Consumer installment loans

Personal 38463 41521

Credit cards 3250 3168

Total consumer installment loans 41.713 44.689

Other loans 2738 6.788

1170520 1125289

Net deferred loan fees 2.912 2031

Total loans 1167608 1123258

Less Allowance for loan losses 25497 24525

Loans net 1142111 1098733

At December 31 2012 variable rate and fixed rate loans totaled $753501000 and $414107000 respectively At

December 31 2011 variable rate loans were $694688000 and fixed rate loans totaled $428570000

In the normal course of business Wilson Bank has made loans at prevailing interest rates and terms to directors and

executive officers of the Company and to their affiliates The aggregate amount of these loans was $9309000 and

$9872000 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively As of December 31 2012 none of these loans were

restructured nor were any related party loans charged-off during the past three years nor did they involve more than the

normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

An analysis of the activity with respect to such loans to related parties is as follows

In Thousands

December 31

2012 2011

Balance January 9872 9919

New loans and renewals during the year 5735 9698

Repayments including loans paid by renewal

during the year 6.298 9745

Balance December 31 9309 9872

director of the Company performs appraisals related to certain loan customers Fees paid to the director for these

services were $364000 in 2012 $198000 in 2011 and $279000 in 2010

loan is considered impaired in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance FASB ASC 310 when based

on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the

borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan Impaired loans include nonperforming commercial and

real estate loans but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings where concessions have been granted to

borrowers experiencing financial difficulties These concessions could include reduction in the interest rate on the

loan payment extensions forgiveness of principal forbearance or other actions intended to maximize collection

Substantially all of the Companys impaired loans are collateral dependent

The following table present the Companys impaired loans at December 31 2012 and 2011

In Thousands

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

December 31 2012

With no related allowance

recorded

Residential 1-4 family 3418 3418 4134 215

Multifamily 103

Commercial real estate 4439 5439 5371 66

Construction 1952 4252 6166 74

Farmland 37

Second mortgages 606 606 667

Equity lines of credit

Commercial

Agricultural

10.415 13.715 1647E 355
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

In Thousands

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

December 31 2012

With allowance recorded

Residential 1-4 family 5950 5950 1318 6084 325

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 12504 12504 2319 14580 509

Construction 8963 8963 2014 8171 52

Farmland 2826 2826 1160 3155 57

Second mortgages 156 156 47 155 10

Equity lines of credit 172 172 223

Commercial 216

Agricultural

30.571 30.571 6.861 32.584 962

Total

Residential 1-4 family 9368 9368 1318 10218 540

Multifamily 103

Commercial real estate 16943 17943 2319 19951 575

Construction 10915 13215 2014 14337 126

Farmland 2826 2826 1160 3192 57

Second mortgages 762 762 47 822 10

Equity lines of credit 172 172 223

Commercial 216

Agricultural

40.986 44.286 6.861 49.062 1317

In Thousands

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

December 31 2011

With no related allowance

recorded

Residential 1-4 family 6263 6439 4670 271

Multifamily 412 412 414 23

Commercial real estate 6711 6711 4461 268

Construction 8418 8918 7327 186

Farmland 1366

Second mortgages 606 606 606

Equity lines of credit 93

Commercial 176 51

Agricultural

22.410 23.262 18.988 748
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

In Thousands

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

December 31 2011

With allowance recorded

Residential 1-4 family 5310 5310 1053 7361 262

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 16971 16971 3744 15826 673

Construction 8215 8215 2228 12250 137

Farmland 4261 4261 1193 3181 129

Second mortgages 316 316 41 199 10

Equity lines of credit 170 170 15 43

Commercial 849 849 754 928 32

Agricultural

36.092 36.092 9.028 39.788 251

Total

Residential 1-4 family 11573 11749 1053 12031 533

Multifamily 412 412 414 23

Commercial real estate 23682 23682 3744 20287 941

Construction 16633 17133 2228 19577 323

Farmland 4261 4261 1193 4547 129

Second mortgages 922 922 41 805 10

Equity lines of credit 170 170 15 136

Commercial 849 1025 754 979 32

Agricultural

58502 59.354 9028 58776 1999

The following tables present the Companys nonaccrual loans credit quality indicators and past due loans as of

December 31 2012 and 2011

Loans on Nonaccrual Status

In Thousands

2012 2011

Residential 1-4 family 930 2256

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 4445 4995

Construction 9626 14378

Farmland 1248 2695

Second mortgages 606 606

Equity lines of credit

Commercial 35

Installment and other

Total 16.855 24965
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

Potential problem loans which include nonperforming loans amounted to approximately $49.4 million at December 31 2012 compared to $67.3 million at December 31 2011 Potential

problem loans represent those loans with well defined weakness and where information about possible credit problems of borrowers has caused management to have serious doubts

about the borrowers
ability to comply with present repayment terms This definition is believed to be substantially consistent with the standards established by the FDIC the Companys

primary federal regulator for loans classified as special mention substandard or doubtful excluding the impact of nonperforming loans

The following table
presents our loan balances by pnmary loan classification and the amount classified within each risk

rating category Pass rated loans include all credits other than

those included in
special mention substandard and doubtful which are defined as follows

Special mention loans have potential weaknesses that deserve managements lose attention If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the

repayment prospects for the asset or in the Companys credit position at some future date

Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Assets so classified must have

well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize liquidation of the debt Substandard loans are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain

some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected

Doubtful loans have all the characteristics of substandard loans with the added characteristics that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently

existing facts conditions and values highly questionable and improbable The Company considers all doubtful loans to be impaired and
places

the loans on nonaccrual status

Credit Quolity Indicators

in Thousands

Residential Commercial Second Equity Lines Installment

1-4 Family Multifamily Real Estate Construction Farmland Mortgages of Credit Commercial Agneultural and Other Total

Credit Risk Profile by

Internally Assigned

Grade

December 31 2012

Pass 326648 16087 452350 179114 23253 11123 35756 30499 2215 44057 1121102

Special mention 9969 53 5699 282 71 477 295 32 98 16981

Substandard 5360 11708 10960 2995 877 209 14 18 296 32437
Doubtful

Total 341977 16140 469757 190356 26319 12477 36260 30545 2238 44451 1170520

December 31 2011

Pass 326406 9245 398459 149451 31251 13158 38803 37691 2534 51010 1058008

Specialmention 9537 53 7963 459 76 517 316 37 157 19115
Substandard 8086 493 16109 16550 4364 1036 188 1008 22 310 48166
Doubtful

Total 344029 9791 422531 166460 35691 14711 39307 38736 2556 51477 1125289



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

Age Analysis of Past Due Loans

In Thousands

Nonaccrual Recorded

and Total Investment

30-59 60 89 Greater Nonaccrual Greater Than

Days Days Than and Total 90 Days and

Past Due Past Due 90 Days Past Due Current Loans Accruing

December 31 2012

Residential 1-4 family 5297 1448 1524 8269 333708 341977 594

Multifamily 16140 16140

Commercial real estate 1599 710 4470 6779 462978 469757 25

Construction 796 72 9650 10518 179838 190356 24

Farmland 260 43 1248 1551 24768 26319

Secondmortgages 396 677 1080 11397 12477 71

Equity lines of credit 186 173 46 405 35855 36260 46

Commercial 204 24 54 282 30263 30545 54

Agricultural installment and

other 488 143 105 736 45953 46689 105

Total 9226 2620 17774 29620 1140900 1170520 919

December 31 2011

Residential 1-4 family 4003 1029 3566 8598 335431 344029 1310

Multifamily 53 53 9738 9791

Commercial real estate 548 1803 8990 11341 411190 422531 3995

Construction 329 14473 14802 151658 166460 95

Farmland 46 2695 2741 32950 35691

Second mortgages
49 50 MO 739 13972 14711 34

Equity lines of credit 36 64 100 39207 39307

Commercial 64 44 148 256 38480 38736 113

Agricultural installment and

other 327 172 123 622 53411 54033 123

Total 5455 3162 30635 39252 1086037 1125289 5670



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows

In Thousands

Residential Commercial Second Equity Lines Installment

1-4 Family Multifamily Real Estate Construction Farmland Mortgages of Credit Commercial Agricultural and Other Total

December 31 2012

Allowance for loan

losses

Beginning balance 5414 54 8242 6223 1829 326 653 1309 19 456 24525

Provision 1557 35 5021 3020 284 62 65 544 162 9528

Charge-offs 1331 4057 2226 462 120 96 454 412 9158
Recoveries 59

___________
99 174 71 188 602

Ending balance 5699 89 9305 7191 1658 272 492 382 15 394 25497

Ending balance individually

evaluated for impairment 13 18 2319 2014 1160 47 6861

Ending balance collectively

evaluated for impairment 4381 89 6986 5177 498 225 489 382 15 394 18636

Ending balance loans

acquired with deteriorated

credit quality

Loans

Endingbalance 341977 16140 469757 190356 26319 12477 36260 30545 2238 44451 1170520

Ending balance individually

evaluated for impairment 9368 16943 10915 2826 762 172 40986

Ending balance collectively

evaluated for impairment 332609 16140 452814 179441 23493 11715 36088 30545 2238 44451 1129534

Ending balance loans

acquired with detenorated

credit quality
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\otec to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

In Thousands

Residential Commercial Second Equity Lines Installment

Family Multifamily Real Estate Construction Farmland Mortgages of Credit Commercial Agricultural and Other Total

December31 2011

Allowance for loan

losses

Beginning balance 5140 46 7285 5558 988 276 767 1163 67 887 22177

Provision 2311 2228 2279 1137 311 18 640 47 207 8678

Charge-offs 2108 1283 1681 296 268 148 516 461 6762
Recoveries 71 12 67 16 22

__________
237 432

Ending balance 5414 54 8242 6223 1829 326 653 1309 19 456 24525

Ending balance individually

evaluated for impairment 1053 3744 2228 1193 41 15 754 9028

Ending balance
collectively

evaluated for impairment 4361 54 4498 3995 636 285 638 555 19 456 15497

Ending balance loans

acquired with deteriorated

credit quality

Loans

Ending balance 344029 9791 422531 166460 35691 14711 39307 38736 2556 51477 1125289

Ending balance individually

evaluated for impairment 11573 412 23682 16633 4261 922 170 849 58502

Ending balance collectively

ealuated for impairment 332456 9379 398849 l4827 31430 1378 3137 17887 256 l477 lfl667R7

Ending balance loans

acquired with deteriorated

credit quality



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

The following table outlines the amount of each troubled debt restructuring categorized by loan classification as of December 31 2012 and 2011 dollars in

thousands

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Post Post

Modification Modification

Pre Outstanding Pre Outstanding

Modification Recorded Modification Recorded

Outstanding Investment Outstanding Investment

Number Recorded Net of Related Number of Recorded Net of Related

of Contracts Investment Allowance Contracts Investment Allowance

Residential 1-4 family 365 275 3938 3088

Multifamily

Commercial real estate 416 354

Construction 1291 1291

Farmland 1445 595

Second mortgages

Equity lines of credit

Commercial 245 95

Agricultural installment and

other 17 17

Total 3534 2532 4183 3183

The Company has not had any troubled debt restructurings that subsequently defaulted default is defined as an occurrence which violates the terms of the

receivables contract



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Continued

The Companys principal customers are primarily in the Middle Tennessee area with concentration in Wilson County

Tennessee Credit is extended to businesses and individuals and is evidenced by promissory notes The terms and

conditions of the loans including collateral vary depending upon the purpose of the credit and the borrowers financial

condition

In 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company originated loans in the secondary market of $135107000 $111040000 and

$108038000 respectively The fees and gain on sale of these loans totaled $3602000 $2069000 and $2275000 in

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The Company sells loans to third-party investors on loan-by-loan basis and has

not entered into any forward commitments with investors for future bulk sales All of these loans sales transfer

servicing rights to the buyer

Of the loans sold in the secondary market the recourse to Wilson Bank is limited On loans sold to the Federal Home

Loan Mortgage Corporation Wilson Bank has recourse obligation for one year from the purchase date At

December 31 2012 there were no loans sold to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with existing recourse

All other loans sold in the secondary market provide the purchaser recourse to Wilson Bank for period of 90 days up

to one year from the date of purchase and only in the event of default by the borrower pursuant to the terms of the

individual loan agreement At December 31 2012 and 2011 total loans sold with recourse to Wilson Bank including

those sold to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation aggregated $131322000 and $97144000 respectively

At December 31 2012 Wilson Bank had not been required to repurchase any of the loans originated by Wilson Bank

and sold in the secondary market Management expects no material losses to result from these recourse provisions

Debt and Equity Securities

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheet according to managements intent

Debt and equity securities at December 31 2012 consist of the following

Securities Held-To-Maturity

In Thousands

Mortgage-backed

Government-sponsored enterprises

GSE5 residential

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions

U.S Government-sponsored

enterprises GSE5
Mortgage-backed

GSE residential

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value

2918 122 3040

12590 687 13277

15.508 809 16317

Securities Available-For-Sale

In Thousands

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value

122110 643 55 122698

177787 3373 32 181128

13.214 267 29 13.452

313.111 4.283 116 317278

Such as Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Federal Home Loan Banks Federal Farm Credit Banks and Government National Mortgage

Association
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Debt and Equity Securities Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

There were no collateralized mortgage obligations at December 31 2011 Included in mortgage-backed GSE

residential available for sale securities are collateralized mortgage obligations totaling $9262000 fair value

of $9357000 at December 31 2012

The Companys classification of securities at December 31 2011 is as follows

Mortgage-backed

Government-sponsored enterprises

GSE5 residential

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions

U.S Government-sponsored

enterprises GSE5
Mortgage-backed

GSE residential

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions

Securities Held-To-Maturity

In Thousands

114819 268

192989 1379

1.521 117

309.329 1764

Such as Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Federal Home Loan Banks Federal Farm Credit Banks and Government National Mortgage

Association

The amortized cost and estimated market value of debt securities at December 2012 by contractual maturity are

shown below Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call

or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

In Thousands

Securities Held-To-Maturity

Amortized

Cost

Estimated

Market

Value

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years

Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Mortgage-backed securities

1881

5509

3542

1658

12590

2.918

15.508

1895

5833

3752

1.797

13277

3040

16317

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value

2425 103 2528

12039 699 12738

14464 802 15266

Securities Available-For-Sale

In Thousands

Cost Gains

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Losses Value

161 114926

201 194167

1638

362 310.731
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Debt and Eguiti Securities Continued

In Thousands

Securities Available-For-Sale Estimated

Amortized Market

Cost Value

Due in one year or less 2009 2013

Due after one year through five years 25198 25321

Due after five years through ten years 97812 98489

Due after ten years 10305 10327

135324 136150

Mortgage-backed securities 177787 181128

311111 317.278

Results from sales of debt and equity securities are as follows

In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Gross proceeds 37353 59.532

Gross realized gains 261 192 551

Gross realized losses 19

Net realized gains 259 i92 532

Securities carried in the balance sheet of approximately $125593000 approximate market value of$126758000 and

$1 18504000 approximate market value of $118979000 were pledged to secure public deposits and for other

purposes as required or permitted by law at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Included in the securities above are $12807000 approximate market value of $13475000 and $11538000

approximate market value of $12203000 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively in obligations of political

subdivisions located within the State of Tennessee Management purchases only obligations of such political

subdivisions it considers to be financially sound

Securities that have rates that adjust prior to maturity totaled $16000 approximate market value of $16000 and

$20000 approximate market value of $20000 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Temporarily Impaired Securities

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Companys investments with unrealized

losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired aggregated by investment category and length of time

that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position at December 31 2012
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Available for sale and held to maturity securities that have been in continuous unrealized loss position are as follows

Field to Maturity Securities

Debt securities

Mortgage-backed

GSE residential

In Thousands Except Number of Securities

12 Months or More

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions

Available-for-Sale

Securities

Debt securities

GSEs

__

22159 55 $- 22159 55

Mortgage-backed

GSE residential

Obligations of states and

political
subdivisions

7244 32

3398 29

7244

3398

4Z$I 116 22 $_ 32801 S_JI6

Restricted Equity Securities

Restricted equity securities consists of stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank amounting to $3012000 and $3012000

at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The stock can be sold back only at par or value as determined by the

issuing institution and only to the respective financial institution or to another member institution These securities are

recorded at cost

Premises and Equipment

The detail of premises and equipment at December 31 2012 and 2011 is as follows

2012

in Thousands

2011

Land

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment

Automobiles

Construction-in-progress

Less accumulated depreciation

15115

25114

140

5765

119

46253

10400
35.853

15111

23578

140

5636

92

1118

45675

10238
35437

Less than 12 Months

Number

of

Fair Unrealized Securities

Value Losses Included

Number

of

Fair Unrealized Securities

Value Losses Included

Total

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

$-

10

32

29
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Premises and Equipment Continued

During 2012 and 2011 payments of $343000 and $1173000 respectively were made to director for building repairs

and maintenance and construction of buildings

Depreciation expense was $1530000 $1491000 and $1527000 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively

Acquired 1ntanibIe Assets and Goodwill

The intangible assets result from the excess of purchase price over the applicable book value of the net assets acquired

of 50% owned subsidiaries in 2005

Amortizable intangible assets

In Thousands

2012 2011

Premium on purchased deposits 2787 2787

Accumulated amortization 2787 2675

112

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Amortization expense
112 396 396

The premium on purchased deposits was amortized on straight-line basis over years

In Thousands

2012 2011

Goodwill

Balance at January 4805 4805

Goodwill acquired during year

Impairment loss

Balance at December 31 4805

Other Assets

Other assets were $10965000 and $7592000 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively During 2009 the FDIC

required all members to prepay three years of estimated deposit insurance premiums The Companys assessment was

$7176000 As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had $2176000 and $3467000 remaining in prepaid

FDIC insurance respectively
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Deposits

Deposits at December31 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows

In Thousands

2012 2011

Demand deposits 126953 107403

Savings accounts 94441 90010

Negotiable order of withdrawal accounts 310080 257242

Money market demand accounts 339417 293186

Certificates of deposit $100000 or greater 260641 271556

Other certificates of deposit 263095 288489

Individual retirement accounts $100000 or greater 44845 44189

Other individual retirement accounts 54450 53967

1.491922 1406.042

Principal maturities of certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts at December 31 2012 are as follows

In Thousands

Maturity Total

2013 360308

2014 152637

2015 64858

2016 14133

2017 31095

Thereafter

623031

The aggregate amount of overdrafts reclassified as loans receivable was $256000 and $388000 at December 31 2012

and 2011 respectively

Wilson Bank is required to maintain cash balances or balances with the Federal Reserve Bank or other correspondent

banks based on certain percentages of deposit types The average required amounts for the year ended December

2011 was approximately $1500000 At December 31 2012 the Bank was not required to maintain cash balance

with the Federal Reserve

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under repurchase agreements were $10584000 and $7419000 at December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively The maximum amounts of outstanding repurchase agreements at any month end during 2012 and 2011

was $10584000 and $7419000 respectively The average daily balance outstanding during 2012 and 2011 was

$8426000 and $6166000 respectively The weighted-average interest rate on the outstanding balance at

December 31 2012 and 2011 was .52% and .76% respectively The underlying securities are typically held by other

financial institutions and are designated as pledged
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

10 Non-Interest Income and Non-Interest Expense

The significant components of non-interest income and non-interest expense for the years ended December are

presented below

Non-interest income

Service charges on deposits

Other fees and commissions

Security gains net

Fees and gains on sales of loans

Other income

In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

4568 5356 5354

7603 6859 6105

259 192 532

3602 2069 2275

$ll6J35 14.476 14.266

In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Deferred tax liability

Federal

23984

2626

1175

3286

1433

1738

762

10092

$__ 45098

22723

2524

1156

15

3560

1322

1756

739

9868

43463

18799

2407

1251

21

1113

1255

2232

733

8894

36.705

Non-interest expense

Employee salaries and benefits

Occupancy expenses

Furniture and equipment expenses

Loss on sales of other assets net

Write downs and loss on sales of other real estate net

Data processing expenses

FDIC insurance

Directors fees

Other operating expenses

11 income Taxes

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows

Deferred tax asset

Federal

State

In Thousands

State

2012 2011

10177

1616

11793

2947
603

3550

9102

1465

10567

1726
353

2079

8.243 488
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

11 Income Taxes Continued

The tax effects of each type of significant item that gave rise to deferred tax assets liabilities are

In Thousands

2012 2011

Financial statement allowance for loan losses in excess of

tax allowance 9298 8994

Excess of depreciation deducted for tax purposes over the

amounts deducted in the financial statements 1474 1019
Financial statement deduction for deferred compensation in

excess of deduction for tax purposes 879 773

Writedown of other real estate not deductible for income

tax purposes until sold 1578 800

Financial statement income on FHLB stock dividends not

recognized for tax purposes 480 480
Deposit base premium related to acquisition of minority interest 43
Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale 1596 537
Miscellaneous 38

8.243 8.488

The components of income tax expense benefit are summarized as follows

In Thousands

Federal State Total

2012

Current 7022 1307 8329

Deferred 732 82 814
Total 6.290 1.225 7.515

2011

Current 6780 1236 8016

Deferred 1.283 188 1.471
Total 5.497 1.048 6545

2010

Current 6991 1226 8217

Deferred 2.065 324 2.389
Total 4926 902 5828

reconciliation of actual income tax expense of $7515000 $6545000 and $5828000 for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively to the expected tax expense computed by applying the statutory

rate of 34% to earnings before income taxes is as follows

In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Computed expected tax expense 6686 5642 5051

State income taxes net of Federal income tax benefit 780 694 587

Tax exempt interest net of interest expense exclusion 203 199 196
Federal income tax rate in excess of statutory rate

related to taxable income over $10 million 206 187 194

Earnings on cash surrender value of life insurance 82 21 19
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 26 24 19

Stock based compensation expense 10

Other 92 210 185

7515 6.545 5828
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 20122011 and 2010

11 Income Taxes Continued

Total income tax expense for 2012 2011 and 2010 includes $99000 $73000 and $204000 of expense related to the

realized gain and loss respectively on sale of securities

As of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company has not accrued or recognized interest or penalties related to

uncertain tax positions It is the Companys policy to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters

in income tax expense

There were no unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2012

Wilson Bank does not expect that unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within the next 12

months Included in the balance at December 31 2012 were approximately $11.8 million of tax positions deferred tax

assets for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such

deductibility Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting other than interest the disallowance of the shorter

deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the

taxing authority to an earlier period

The Company and its subsidiary file income tax returns in the United States U.S as well as in the State of

Tennessee The Company is no longer subject to U.S federal or state income tax examinations by tax authorities for

years before 2009 The Companys Federal tax returns have been audited through December 31 2004 with no

changes

12 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business Management after consultation

with legal counsel believes that the liabilities if any arising from such litigation and claims will not be material to the

consolidated financial position

In addition the Company is currently involved in two lawsuits in which borrowers have alleged improper conduct by

former officer of the Company One of the two lawsuits relates to counter claim in which actions were brought by the

Company to collect loans in default The lawsuits are currently in trial Management after consultation with legal

counsel does not believe losses if any will be material to the financial position of the Company

Wilson Bank leases land for certain branch facilities and automatic teller machine locations Future minimum rental

payments required under the terms of the noncancellable leases are as follows

Years Ending December 31 In Thousands

2013 83

2014 59

2015 42

2016 13

2017

Total rent expense amounted to $153000 $174000 and $189000 respectively during the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010

The Company has lines of credit with other financial institutions totaling $38000000 At December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively there was no balance outstanding under these lines of credit

13 Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the

financing needs of its customers These financial instruments consist primarily of commitments to extend credit

These instruments involve to varying degrees elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the

consolidated balance sheets The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement

the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments
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13 Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk Continued

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for

commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments The Company

uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet

instruments

In Thousands

Contract or

Notional Amount

2012 2011

Financial instruments whose contract

amounts represent credit risk

Unused commitments to extend credit 189486 158623

Standby letters of credit 25385 16747

Total 214.871 175.370

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any condition

established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may

require payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to be drawn upon the total commitment

amounts generally represent future cash requirements The Company evaluates each customers credit-worthiness on

case-by-case basis The amount of collateral if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based

on managements credit evaluation of the counterparty Collateral normally consists of real property

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of

customer to third party Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements

including commercial paper bond financing and similar transactions Most guarantees extend from one to two years

The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to

customers The fair value of standby letters of credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar

agreements taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements the likelihood of the counter parties drawing on

such financial instruments and the present creditworthiness of such counter parties Such commitments have been

made on terms which are competitive in the markets in which the Company operates thus the fair value of standby

letters of credit equals the carrying value for the purposes of this disclosure The maximum potential amount of future

payments that the Company could be required to make under the guarantees totaled $25.4 million at December 31

2012

14 Concentration of Credit Risk

Practically all of the Companys loans commitments and commercial and standby letters of credit have been granted to

customers in the Companys market area Practically all such customers are depositors of Wilson Bank Investment in

state and municipal securities also include governmental entities within the Companys market area The

concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in note to the consolidated financial statements

At December 31 2012 the Companys cash and due from banks and federal funds sold included commercial bank

deposits aggregating $24592000 in excess of the FDIC limit of $250000 per depositor

Federal funds sold were deposited with three banks

15 Emploee Benefit Plan

Wilson Bank has in effect 40 1k plan the 40 1k Plan which covers eligible employees To be eligible an

employee must have obtained the age of 20 1/2 The provisions of the 40 1k Plan provide for both employee and

employer contributions For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Wilson Bank contributed

$1519000 $1421000 and $218000 respectively to the 401k Plan
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16 Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Under the terms of the Companys dividend reinvestment plan the DRIP holders of common stock may elect to

automatically reinvest cash dividends in additional shares of common stock The Company may elect to sell original

issue shares or to purchase shares in the open market for the account of participants Original issue shares of 106230

in 2012 79962 in 2011 and 79816 in 2010 were sold to participants under the terms ofthe DRIP

17 Regulatory Matters and Restrictions on Dividends

The Company and Wilson Bank are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation the Federal Reserve and the Tennessee Department of Financial Institutions Failure to meet

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by

regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Companys and Wilson Banks financial

statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the

Company and Wilson Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets

liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The capital amounts

and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and

other factors Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to

maintain minimum amounts and ratios set forth in the following table of total and Tier capital as defined in the

regulations to risk-weighted assets as defined and of Tier capital as defined to average assets as defined

Management believes as of December 31 2012 and 2011 that the Company and Wilson Bank meet all capital

adequacy requirements to which they are subject

As of December 31 2012 the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized Wilson Bank as well capitalized

under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action To be categorized as well capitalized an institution must

maintain minimum total risk-based Tier risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables

There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed Wilson Banks

category The Companys and Wilson Banks actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31 2012 and 2011 are

also presented in the table

Regulatory Regulatory

Minimum Capital Minimum To Be

Actual Requirement Well Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

dollars in thousands

December 31 2012

Total capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated 178162 14.2% 100373 8.0% 125466 10.0%

Wilson Bank 176652 14.1 100228 8.0 125285 10.0

Tier capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated 162321 12.9 50332 4.0 75498 6.0

Wilson Bank 160811 12.8 50253 4.0 73380 6.0

Tier capital to average

assets

Consolidated 162321 9.8 66253 4.0 N/A N/A

Wilson Bank 160811 9.7 66314 4.0 82892 5.0
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17 Reeulatori Matters and Restrictions on Dividends Continued

Regulatory Regulatory

Minimum Capital Minimum To Be

Actual Requirement Well Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

dollars in thousands

December 31 2011

Total capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated 166534 14.0% 95162 8.0% 118953 10.0%

Wilson Bank 164775 13.9 94835 8.0 118543 10.0

Tier capital to risk

weighted assets

Consolidated 151566 12.8 47364 4.0 71047 6.0

Wilson Bank 149817 12.6 47561 4.0 71341 6.0

Tier capital to average

assets

Consolidated 151566 9.7 62501 4.0 N/A N/A

Wilson Bank 149817 9.6 62424 4.0 78030 5.0

18 Sala Deferral Plans

Wilson Bank provides its executive officers an Executive Salary Continuation Plan which also provides for death and

disability benefits The Executive Salary Continuation Plan was established by the Board of Directors to reward

executive management for past performance and to provide additional incentive to retain the service of executive

management There were ten employees participating in the Executive Salary Continuation Plan at December 31

2012

The Executive Salary Continuation Plan provides retirement benefits for period of 180 months after the employee

reaches the age of 65 and/or age 55 after 20 years of service The Executive Salary Continuation Plan also provides

benefits over period of fifteen years in the event the executive should die or become disabled prior to reaching

retirement Wilson Bank has purchased insurance policies or other assets to provide the benefits listed above The

insurance policies remain the sole property of Wilson Bank and are payable to Wilson Bank At December 31 2012

and 2011 the salary deferral compensation liability
totaled $2017000 and $1878000 respectively the cash surrender

value of life insurance was $2308000 and $2001000 respectively and the face amount of the insurance policies in

force approximated $7109000 and $7000000 respectively The Executive Salary Continuation Plan is not qualified

under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code

During November 2012 the Company amended its Executive Salary Continuation Plan effectively freezing accrual

benefits so that no additional benefits will be accrued under the existing Executive Salary Continuation Plan The

frozen disability benefit will be paid until the applicable executives normal retirement age at which time such benefit

will be reduced to the normal retirement benefit provided for under the applicable Executive Salary Continuation Plan

agreement for the remaining benefit period

In November 2012 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP Agreements were entered into with Wilson

Banks executive officers to provide certain supplemental nonqualified pension benefits to the executives in

coordination with the freezing of the benefits under the executives Salary Continuation Agreement The SERP

Agreements when combined with the frozen Salary Continuation Agreements continue to provide the executives with

the same benefits as provided under the Salary Continuation Agreements for the 180-month period provided for

thereunder and then continue portion of that benefit for the remainder of each of the executives lives In November

2012 Wilson Bank purchased Flexible Premium Indexed Deferred Annuity Contracts in the amount of $3809000 to

fund the benefits under the SERP Agreements The Salary Continuation Agreements as amended and the SERP

Agreements together provide for the payment of an annual cash benefit to each of the executives or their beneficiaries

following the executives separation from service from Wilson Bank under variety of circumstances including both

the executives voluntary termination of the executives employment with Wilson Bank and the involuntary termination

of the executive by Wilson Bank without cause The payments are made partially from the frozen Salary Continuation

Agreements and partially from the SERP Agreements for 180 months following an executives termination of service

in most cases and portion of the payments then continue for the remainder of the executives life under the SERP
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19 Stock Option Plan

In April 1999 the stockholders of the Company approved the Wilson Bank Holding Company 1999 Stock Option Plan

the 1999 Stock Option Plan The Stock Option Plan provides for the granting of stock options and authorizes the

issuance of common stock upon the exercise of such options for up to 200000 shares of common stock to officers and

other key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries Furthermore the Company may reserve additional shares for

issuance under the 1999 Stock Option Plan as needed in order that the aggregate number of shares that may be issued

during the term of the 1999 Stock Option Plan is equal to five percent 5% of the shares of common stock then issued

and outstanding

In April 2009 the Companys shareholders approved the Wilson Bank Holding Company 2009 Stock Option Plan the

2009 Stock Option Plan The 2009 Stock Option Plan is effective as of April 14 2009 and replaces the 1999 Stock

Option Plan which expired on April 13 2009 Under the 2009 Stock Option Plan awards may be in the form of

options to acquire common stock of the Company Subject to adjustment as provided by the terms of the 2009 Stock

Option Plan the maximum number of shares of common stock with respect to which awards may be granted under the

2009 Stock Option Plan is 75000 shares As of December 31 2012 the Company has granted 29750 options to

employees pursuant to the 2009 Stock Option Plan

Under the 2009 Stock Option Plan stock option awards may be granted in the form of incentive stock options or

nonstatutory stock options and are generally exercisable for up to ten years following the date such option awards are

granted Exercise prices of incentive stock options must be equal to or greater than 100% of the fair market value of

the common stock on the grant date

The fair value of each grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the

following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2012 2011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Expected dividends 1.08% 1.12% 2.37%

Expected term in years 6.09 7.75 7.75

Expected vo1.tility 27% 25% 15%

Risk-free rate 1.27% 2.74% 3.39%

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility adjusted for consideration of other relevant factors The risk-

free interest rates for periods within the contractual life of the awards are based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in

effect at the time of the grant The dividend yield assumption is based on the Companys history and expectation of

dividend payouts

summary of the stock option activity for 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at

beginning of year 52708 31.24 53892 29.46 41370 24.73

Granted 6000 42.06 4500 39.88 19250 37.75

Exercised 8788 21.50 5284 20.76 3659 20.92

Forfeited or expired 933 34.85 400 23.63 3069 26.85

Outstanding at end

of year 4B98i 34.24 52.708 31.24 51.892 29.46

Options exercisable

at year end 11.453 29.69 13.227 $25LLQ 11574 $.2i..8i
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19 Stock Option Plan Continued

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December 31 2012

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Range of Number Average Remaining Number Average Remaining

Exercise Outstanding Exercise Contractual Exercisable Exercise Contractual

Prices at 12/31/12 Price Term at 12/31/12 Price Term

11.46- 17.19 1401 16.88 .3 years 734 16.88 .3 years

$17.20- $25.79 5981 23.03 1.8 years 2938 23.49 2.0 years

$25.80- 38.70 31855 34.97 5.9 years 7406 32.91 5.2 years

$38.71 -$43.25 9750 41.22 8.8 years 375 39.88 8.1 years

492 11.453

Aggregate

intrinsic value

in thousands 441 155

The weighted average fair value at the grant date of options granted during the years 2012 2011 and 2010 was $10.47

$11.53 and $6.01 respectively The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years 2012 2011 and 2010

was $182000 $108000 and $67000 respectively

As of December 31 2012 there was $210000 of total unrecognized cost related to non-vested share-based

compensation arrangements granted under the Companys stock option plans The cost is expected to be recognized

over weighted-average period of 7.5 years

20 Earnings Per Share

The following is summary of the components comprising basic and diluted earnings per share EPS

In Thousands except share data

2012 2011 2010

Basic EPS Computation

Numerator Earnings available to

common stockholders 12148 10.050 9027

Denominator Weighted average number

of common shares outstanding 7.360485 7280907 7198711

Basic earnings per common share 1.65 1.38 1.25

Diluted EPS Computation

Numerator Earnings available to

common stockholders 12148 10.050 9.027

Denominator

Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding 7360485 7280907 7198711

Dilutive effect of stock options 5163 7215 8.253

7365.648 7.288.122 7.206964

Diluted earnings per common

share 1.65 1.38 1.25
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21 Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value in U.S GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The definition of fair

value focuses on the exit price i.e the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
liability

in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date not the entry price i.e the price

that would be paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the liability at the measurement date The statement

emphasizes that fair value is market-based measurement not an entity-specific measurement Therefore the fair

value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing

the asset or liability

Valuation Hierarchy

FASB ASC 820 establishes three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements The

valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the

measurement date The three levels are defined as follows

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or

liabilities in active markets

Level inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in

active markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly for

substantially the full term of the financial instrument

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value

measurement

financial instruments categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input

that is significant to the fair value measurement Following is description of the valuation methodologies used

for assets and liabilities measured at fair value as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities

pursuant to the valuation hierarchy

Assets

Securities available-br-sale Where quoted prices are available for identical securities in an active market securities

are classified within Level of the valuation hierarchy Level securities include highly liquid government securities

and certain other financial products If quoted market prices are not available then fair values are estimated by using

pricing models that use observable inputs or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics and are classified

within Level of the valuation hierarchy In certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around

inputs to the valuation and more complex pricing models or discounted cash flows are used securities are classified

within Level of the valuation hierarchy

Impaired loans loan is considered to be impaired when it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all

principal and interest payments due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement Impaired loans are

measured based on the present value of expected payments using the loans original effective rate as the discount rate

the loans observable market price or the fair value of the collateral less selling costs if the loan is collateral dependent

If the recorded investment in the impaired loan exceeds the measure of fair value valuation allowance may be

established as component of the allowance for loan losses or the expense is recognized as charge-off Impaired

loans are classified within Level of the hierarchy due to the unobservable inputs used in determining their fair value

such as collateral values and the borrowers underlying financial condition
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21 Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments Continued

Assets Continued

Other real estate owned Other real estate owned OREO represents real estate foreclosed upon by the Company

through loan defaults by customers or acquired in lieu of foreclosure Substantially all of these amounts relate to lots

homes and development projects that are either completed or are in various stages of construction for which the

Company believes it has adequate collateral Upon foreclosure the property is recorded at the lower of cost or fair

value based on appraised value less selling costs estimated as of the date acquired with any loss recognized as

charge-off through the allowance for loan losses Additional OREO losses for subsequent valuation downward

adjustments are determined on specific property basis and are included as component of noninterest expense along

with holding costs Any gains or losses realized at the time of disposal are also reflected in noninterest expense as

applicable OREO is included in Level of the valuation hierarchy due to the lack of observable market inputs into the

determination of fair value Appraisal values are property-specific and sensitive to the changes in the overall economic

environment

Other assets Included in other assets are certain assets carried at fair value including the cash surrender value of bank

owned life insurance policies and annuity contracts The Company uses financial information received from insurance

carriers indicating the performance of the insurance policies and cash surrender values in determining the carrying

value of life insurance The Company reflects these assets within Level of the valuation hierarchy due to the

unobservable inputs included in the valuation of these items The Company does not consider the fair values of these

policies to be materially sensitive to changes in these unobservable inputs

The following tables present the financial instruments carried at fair value as of December 2012 and December

2011 by caption on the consolidated balance sheet and by FASB ASC 820 valuation hierarchy as described above in

thousands

Models with Models with

Total Carrying Significant Significant

Value in the Quoted Market Observable Unobservable

Consolidated Prices in an Market Market

Balance Active Market Parameters Parameters

Sheet Level Level Level

December 31 2012

Investment securities available-for-sale

U.S Government sponsored enterprises 122698 122698

Mortgage-backed securities 181128 181128

State and municipal securities 13.452 13452

Total investment securities available-for-sale 317278 317278

Otherassets 6315 6315

Total assets at fair value 321593 317.278 6315

December 31 2011

Investment securities available-for-sale

U.S Government sponsored enterprises 114926 114926

Mortgage-backed securities 194167 194167

State and municipal securities 1638 1638

Total investment securities available-for-sale 310731 310731

Other assets 2001 2001

Totalassetsatfairvalue 312732 310.731 2.001
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Models with Models with

Total Carrying Significant Significant

Value in the Quoted Market Observable Unobservable

Consolidated Prices in an Market Market

Balance Active Market Parameters Parameters

Sheet Level Level Level

December 31 2012

Other real estate owned 15307 15307

Impaired loans net 34125 34125

Total 49432

December 31 2011

Other real estate owned 19117 19117

Impaired loans net 49474 49474

Total 65591

Amount is net of valuation allowance of $6.9 million at December 31 2012 and $9.0 million at December 31 2011 as

required by ASC 310-10 Receivables

In the case of the bond portfolio the Company monitors the valuation technique utilized by various pricing agencies to

ascertain when transfers between levels have been affected The nature of the remaining assets and liabilities is such

that transfers in and out of any level are expected to be rare For the twelve months ended December 31 2012 there

were no transfers between Levels or

The table below includes roliforward of the balance sheet amounts for the twelve months ended December 2012

including the change in fair value for financial instruments classified by the Company within Level of the valuation

hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis When determination is made to classify

financial instrument within Level of the valuation hierarchy the determination is based upon the significance of the

unobservable factors to the overall fair value measurement However since Level financial instruments typically

include in addition to the unobservable or Level components observable components that is components that are

actively quoted and can be validated to external sources the gains and losses in the table below include changes in fair

value due in part to observable factors that are part of the valuation methodology in thousands

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31

2012 2011

Other Other Other Other

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fair value January 2001 1554

Total realized gains included in income 242 61

Change in unrealized gains/losses included

in other comprehensive income for

assets and liabilities still held at

December 31

Purchases issuances and settlements net 4072 3S6

Transfers out of Level

Fair value December31 6315 2001

Total realized gains included in income

related to financial assets and

liabilities still on the consolidated

balance sheet at December 31
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21 Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments Continued

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial

instruments that are not measured at fair value In cases where quoted market prices are not available fair values are

based on estimates using discounted cash flow models Those models are significantly affected by the assumptions

used including the discount rates estimates of future cash flows and borrower creditworthiness The fair value

estimates presented herein are based on pertinent information available to management as of December 2012 and

December 2011 Such amounts have not been revalued for
purposes

of these consolidated financial statements

since those dates and therefore current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented

herein

Held-to-maturity securities Estimated fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices where

available If quoted market prices are not available then fair values are estimated by using pricing models that use

observable inputs or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics

Loans The fair value of our loan portfolio includes credit risk factor in the determination of the fair value of our

loans This credit risk assumption is intended to approximate the fair value that market participant would realize in

hypothetical orderly transaction Our loan portfolio is initially fair valued using segmented approach We divide our

loan portfolio into the following categories variable rate loans impaired loans and all other loans The results are then

adjusted to account for credit risk

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk fair values approximate

carrying values Fair values for impaired loans arc estimated using discounted cash flow models or based on the fair

value of the underlying collateral For other loans fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow models using

current market interest rates offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality The values

derived from the discounted cash flow approach for each of the above portfolios are then further discounted to

incorporate credit risk to determine the exit price

Mortgage loans held-for-sale Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value The

estimate of fair value is equal to the carrying value of these loans as they are usually sold within few weeks of their

origination

Deposits Securities sold under agreements to repurchase Federal Home Loan Bank advances Subordinated

debt and other borrowings The canying amounts of demand deposits savings deposits and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase approximate their fair values Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated using

discounted cash flow models using current market interest rates offered on certificates with similar remaining

maturities

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments The fair values of the Companys off-balance-sheet financial instruments are based

on fees charged to enter into similar agreements However commitments to extend credit do not represent significant

value to the Company until such commitments are funded
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21 Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments Continued

The following table presents the carrying amounts estimated fair value and placement in the fair value hierarchy of the

Companys financial instruments at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 This table excludes financial

instruments for which the carrying amount approximates fair value For short-term financial assets such as cash and

cash equivalents the carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value due to the relatively short time between the

origination of the instrument and its expected realization For financial liabilities such as noninterest bearing demand

interest-bearing demand and savings deposits the cariying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value due to these

products having no stated maturity

Quoted Models with Models with

Market Significant Significant

Prices in Observable Unobservable

Carrying/ Estimated an Active Market Market

Notional Fair Value Market Parameters Parameters

in Thousands Amount Level Level Level

December 31 2012

Financial assets

Securities held-to-maturity 15508 16317 16317

Loansnet 1142111 1166664 1166664

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 15648 15648 15648

Financial liabilities

Deposits and securities sold

under agreements to

repurchase 1504506 1506186 1506186

Of/-balance sheet instruments

Commitments to extend

credit

Standby letters of credit

December 31 2011

Financial assets

Securities held-to-maturity 14464 15266 15266

Loans net 1098733 1107440 1107440

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 14775 14775 14775

Financial liabilities

Deposits and securities sold

under agreements to

repurchase 1413461 1415460 1415460

Of/-balance sheet instruments

Commitments to extend

credit

Standby letters of credit

Estimated fair values are consistent with an exit-price concept The assumptions used to estimate the fair values are intended

to approximate those that market-participant would realize in hypothetical orderly transaction
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22 Wilson Bank Holding Company

Parent Company Financial In formation

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Parent Company Only

Balance Sheets

December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011

ASSETS

Cash 1337 1579

Investment in wholly-owned commercial bank subsidiary 168188 155599

Refundable income taxes 173 170

Total assets 169698 157348

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EOUITY

Stockholders equity

Common stock par value $2.00 per share authorized 15000000

shares 7419204 and 7304186 shares issued and outstanding

respectively 14838 14608

Additional paid-in capital 51242 46734

Retained earnings 101046 95141

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities net of

income taxes of$l595 and $537 respectively 2572 865

Total stockholders equity 169698 157348

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 169.698 157.348

Eliminated in consolidation
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22 Wilson Bank Holding Company

Parent Company Financial In formation Continued

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Parent Company Only

Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Expenses

Directors fees 319 346 346

Other 88 64 45

Loss before Federal income tax benefits and equity

in undistributed earnings of commercial bank

subsidiaries 407 410 391

Federal income tax benefits 173 170 164

234 240 227

Equity in undistributed earnings of commercial bank

subsidiary 12382 10290 9254

Net earnings 12148 10050 9027

Other comprehensive earnings losses net of tax

Net unrealized gains losses on available-for-sale-

securities arising during period net of taxes

of$1158 $2685 and $1578 respectively 1867 4330 2546
Reclassification adjustments for net gains

included in net earnings net of taxes of

$100 $73 and $204 respectively 160 119 328

Other comprehensive earnings losses 1707 4211 2.874

Comprehensive earnings 13855 14261

Eliminated in consolidation
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22 Wilson Bank Holding Company

Parent Company Financial Information Continued

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
Parent Company Only

Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Dollars In Thousands

Net Unrealized

Additional Gain Loss On

Common Paid-In Retained Available-For-

Stock Capital Earnings Sale Securities Total

Balance December 31 2009 14295 41022 84712 472 139557

Cash dividends declared $60 per share 4300 4300
Issuance of 79816 shares of stock pursuant to dividend

reinvestment plan 160 2892 3052

5969 common shares repurchased 12 213 225
Issuance of 3659 shares of stock pursuant to exercise

of stock options 69 76

Share based compensation expense 20 20

Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale

securities during the year net of taxes of$1782 2874 2874
Net earnings for the year 9027 9027

Balance December 31 2010 14450 43790 89439 3346 144333

Cash dividends declared $60 per share 4348 4348
Issuance of 79962 shares of stock pursuant to dividend

reinvestment plan 160 3058 3218

6148 common shares repurchased 13 237 250
Issuance of 5284 shares of stock pursuant to exercise

of stock options 11 99 110

Share based compensation expense 24 24

Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale

securities during the year net of taxes of $2612 4211 4211

Net earnings for the year 10.050 10050

Balance December 31 2011 14608 46734 95141 865 157348

Cash dividends declared $.89 per share 6243 6243
Issuance of 106230 shares of stock pursuant to dividend

reinvestment plan 212 4306 4518

Issuance of 8788 shares of stock pursuant to exercise

of stock options 18 171 189

Share based compensation expense 31 31

Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale

securities during the year net of taxes of $1058 1707 1707

Net earnings for the year 12148 12148

Balance December 31 2012 14.838 51.242 101046 2572 169698
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

22 Wilson Bank Holding Company

Parent Company Financial In formation Continued

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Parent Company Only

Statements of Cash Flows

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash paid to suppliers and other 376 386 371

Tax benefits received 170 164 228

Net cash used in operating activities 206 222 143

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received from commercial bank subsidiary 1500 4500

Net cash provided by investing activities 1500 4500

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid 6243 4348 4300

Proceeds from sale of stock pursuant to dividend

reinvestment 4518 3218 3052

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 189 110 76

Common shares repurchased 249 225

Net cash used in financing activities 1536 1269 1397

Net increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 242 1491 2960

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1579 3070 110

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1331 1.579 3.07Q
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WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

22 Wilson Bank Holding Company
Parent Company Financial Information Continued

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY
Parent Company Only

Statements of Cash Flows Continued

Three Years Ended December 31 2012

Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Dollars In Thousands

2012 2011 2010

Reconciliation of net earnings to net cash used in operating

activities

Net earnings 12148 10050 9027

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash used in

operating activities

Equity in earnings of commercial bank subsidiary 12382 10290 9254
Decrease increase in refundable income taxes 64

Share based compensation expense 31 24 20

Total adjustments 12354 10272 9170

Net cash used in operating activities 206 222 143
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23 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPA VY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and2OJO

Selected quarterly results of oeprations for the four quarters ended December31 are as follows

In Thousands except per share data

Interest income

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Eamings before income taxes

Net eamings

Basic earnings per common share

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

18263 18027 18166 17905 17959 18295 18181 17.915 18376 18919 19669 19216

15079 14628 14590 13957 13.639 13880 13725 13216 13178 13077 13381 12.492

2655 2407 2210 2256 1629 2462 2618 1969 4666 1989 6073 2106

4.267 5643 5.122 463 3917 4365 4283 4030 2827 5122 2683 4223

2715 3459 3149 2825 2296 2663 2615 2476 1687 3.100 1655 2585

037 147 143 039 031 0.37 0.36 0.34 0.23 0.43 0.23 0.36

0.37 0.47 0.43 0.39 0.31 0.36 036 034 0.23 0.43 0.23 0.36

2012 2011 2010

Diluted earnings per common share



WILSON BANK HOLDING COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

24 Subsequent Events

ASC Topic 855 Subsequent Events as amended by ASU No 2010-90 establishes general standards of accounting for

and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued The

Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after December 2012 through the date of the issued

financial statements During this period there were no material recognizable subsequent events that required

recognition in our disclosures to the December 31 2012 financial statements

This financial information has not been reviewed for accuracy or relevance by the FDIC
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Holding Company Stock Information

Wilson Bank Holding Company Directors and Executive Officers

Robert VanHooser Chairman Randall Clemons President CEO Charles Bell Jimmy Corner

Mackey Bentley Jerry Franklin John Freeman James Anthony Patton Harold Patton Jack Bell Elmer

Richerson Executive Vice President John Trice

Common Stock Market Information

The common stock of Wilson Bank Holding Company is not traded on an exchange nor is there

known active trading market The number of stockholders of record at February 2013 was 3417 Based

solely on information made available to the Company from limited numbers of buyers and sellers the

Company believes that the following table sets forth the quarterly range of sale prices for the Companys

stock during the years 2011 and 2012

Stock Prices

2011 High Low

First Quarter $39.75 $39.25

Second Quarter $40.25 $39.75

Third Quarter $40.75 $40.25

Fourth Quarter $41.25 $40.75

2012

First Quarter $41.75 $41.25

Second Quarter $42.25 $41.75

Third Quarter $42.75 $42.25

Fourth Quarter $43.25 $42.75

On January 2011 $30 per share cash dividend was declared and on July 2011 $.30 per

share cash dividend was declared and paid to shareholders of record on those dates On January 2012

$30 per share cash dividend was declared and on July 2012 $.30 per share cash dividend was

declared and paid to shareholders of record on those dates On December 2012 $.25 per share cash

dividend was declared and paid to shareholders of record on this date Future dividends will be

dependent upon the Companys profitability its capital needs overall financial condition economic and

regulatory consideration

Annual Meeting and Information Contacts

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held in the Main Office of

Wilson Bank Holding Company at 700 P.M April 2013

at 623 West Main Street Lebanon Tennessee

For further information concerning Wilson Bank Holding Company or Wilson Bank Trust or

to obtain copy of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission which is available without charge to shareholders please contact Lisa Pominski

CFO Wilson Bank Trust P.O Box 768 Lebanon Tennessee 37088-0768 phone 615 443-6612
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WILsoN BANK
HOLDING COMPANY

FIvE YEAR
PERFORMANCE INDEX

The following graph compares the percentage change in the unaudited

total return on the Wilson Bank Holding Companys common stock

against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Index and The NI
Bank Index $lB $BB between December 31 200/ and December 31

2012 ftc graph assumes the value of the investment in Wilson Bank

Holding Companys common stock and each index was $100 at

December 12006 and that all dividends vvere reinvested

miwIson Bank Holding Company 10000 10872 116.84 12802 33.3 142.6/
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